

LIJE1/10.5/W89/1919

orkmen's Compensation

Law

Colorado

of 1919

PASSED BY THE

Twenty-second General Assembly of the State of Colorado

AND

Industrial Commission Law of 1915



THE MITH BR PE DENVE



Haturn to State Publications Library 2. East Colfax Avenue, Room # 314 Decision CO 80203

Workmen's Compensation Law of 1919

Colorado

AND

Industrial Commission Law of 1915

INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF COLORADO

JOSEPH C. BELL, Chairman HIRAM E. HILTS, Commissioner WM. I. REILLY, Commissioner

WALTER E. SCHWED, Secretary WM. F. MOWRY, Chief of Claim Department THOS. F. KEARNY, Assistant Manager State Compensation Insurance Fund

OFFICE

STATE CAPITOL BUILDING DENVER, COLORADO

Table of Contents

	Page
Cross Reference to Act of 1915 and 1917 and Act of 1919	3
Workmen's Compensation Act of 1919	11
Definitions	. 12
Loaning Services	13
Abrogation of Defenses	. 14
Right to Compensation—Exclusive when	14
Election and Acceptance and Rejection	15
Insurance	16
Self Insurance	19
Notices and Reports	19
General Powers	20
Earnings	23
Contractors and Lessees	24
Medical, Surgical and Hospital	25
Dependency	26
Accident Benefits	30
General Provisions	36
Procedure	- 39
State Compensation Insurance Fund	46
Ratification of Prior Acts and Proceedings and Contin- uance of Jurisdiction	
Procedural Provisions Retro-active	
Declaration of Legislative Intention	
Repeating Clause	
Emergency Clauses	
Index to Compensation Act of 1919	_
Industrial Commission Act of 1915	
Industrial Commission Act	92

Workmen's Compensation Act of 1915 and Amendments of 1917

Indexed to New Compensation Act of 1919-S	enate Bill No. 5	9
---	------------------	---

	· ·		
OLD LAW	NEW LAW	OLD LAW	NEW LAW
Section	Section	Section	Section
1	2	4-f-VII-2-a	58-a
2 .	3	4-f-VII-2-b	53
3	4	4-f-VII-2-c	58-b
4-a	5	4-f-VIII	59
4-b	6	4-f-IX	59
4-e	7	4-f-X	66
4-d-1	8	4-f-XI	60
4-d-2	8-b	4-g	47
4-d-3	8-c	4-g-1	47
4-d-4	10	4-g-2	47-a
4-e-1	9-a	4-g-3	OUT
4-e-2	9-b	4-g-4	47-g
4-e-3	49 & 50	4-g-5	48
4-e-4	11	4-h	OUT
4-f-1	52	5	12
4-f-1	52-a	5-a	12-a
4-f-2	52-b	5-b	12-b
4-f-3	TUO	5-с	12-с
4-f-II	53	6	13
4-f-III	53	7	14
4-f-IV	54	8	15
4-f-V	55	8-1	15-a
4-f-VI	56	8-2	15-b
4-f-VII-1	57	8-3	15-c
4-f-VII-2	58	9	17

OLD LAW Section	NEW LAW Section	OLD LAW Section	NEW LAW Section
9-II	16	24	38
9-111	20	25	39
10	21	26	126
10-1	21-a	27	127
10-2	21-b	28	128
10-3	21-е	28-a	OUT
11	22-23-25-26-143	28-b	OUT
12	18	28-е	OUT
12-a	18-a	28-d	OUT
12-b	18-b	28-e	OUT
12-c	OUT	28-f	OUT
13	19	28-g	OUT
14	30-31	28-h	129
15	34	28-h-1	129-a
16	35-36	28-h-2	129-ь & 129-с
17	32-33	29	130-131
18	32	30	134
19	36	31	132
20	122	32	144
21	133	-33	· 145
22	125	34	146
23	123 - 124	35	OUT
23-1	124-a	36	45
23-2	124-b	37	OUT
23-3	124-c	38	40, 40-a, 40-b
23-4	42	39	OUT
23-5	43	40	135
23-6	41	41	135
23-7	37	42	29
23-8	139	43	136

OLD LAW	NEW LAW	OLD LAW	NEW LAW
Section	Section	Section	Section
44	137	60	69
45	137	61-a	83-a
46	OUT	61-b	83-c
47	OUT	61-c	83-b
48	OUT	62	84
49	OUT	63	86
50	51	64 07	86
51	OUT	65	OUT
52	70	66	140
52-a	70-a	67	141
52-b	70-ь	68	142
51-1	80	69	OUT
53	71	70	92-93-94-95-96-97
54	73	71	111
54-a	75	72	112-113-107
54-b	73-е	73	114
54-c	73-b	74	115
54-d	73-с	75	116
54-e	73-d	7 6	OUT *110
54-f	73-f	77	98
55	77	78	99-100
56	81	79	101
57	82-64	80	102
57-1	63-a	81	103
57-2	63-b	81-1	103-a
57-3	63-е	81.2	. 103-b
57-a	64-a	81.3	103-с & 104-105-106
57-b	64-b	82	107
58	64-65	83	108
59	67-68	84	109-90

OLD LAW	NEW LAW	OLD LAW	NEW LAW
Section	Section	Section	Section
85	117	90	OUT
86	118	91	151
87	119	92	150
88	120	93	152
89	121	94	153

Workmen's Compensation Act of 1919 SENATE BILL NO. 59

Indexed to Workmen's Compensation Act of 1915 and Amendments of 1917

NEW LAW	OLD LAW	NEW LAW	OLD LAW
Section	Section	Section	Section
1	NEW	15-b	8-2
2	1	15-е	8-3
3	2	16	9-11
4	3	17	9
5	4-a	18	12
6	4-b	18-a	12-a
7	4-c	18-b	12-b
8-a	4-d-1	19	13
8-b	4-d-2	20	9-III
8-c	4-d-3	21	10
9-a	4-e-1	21-a	10-1
9-b	4-e-2	21-b	10-2
10	4-d-4	21-с	10-3
11	4-e-4	22	11
12	. 5	23	11
12-a	5-a	24 .	NEW
12-b	5-b	25	11
12-c	5-c	26	11
13	6	27	NEW
14	7	28	NEW
15	8	29	10-3, 42
15-a	8-1	30	14

NEW LAW Section	OLD LAW Section	NEW LAW Section	OLD LAW Section
31	14	53	NEW
32	17-18	54	4-f-IV
33	17	55	4-f-V
34	15	56	4-f-VI
35	16	57	4-f-VII-1
36	16-19	58	4-f-VII-2
37	27-7	59.	4-f-VIII-IX
38	24	60	4-f-XI
39	25	61	NEW
40	38	62	57
40-a	38	63	57
40-b	38	63-a	57-1
41	NEW	- 63-b	57-2
42	23-4	63-с	57-3
43	23-5	64	57
44	23-6	64-a	57-a
45	36	64-b	57-b
46	NEW	65	57-58
47	4-g, 4-g-1	65-a	57-58
47-a	4-g-2	65-b	57-58
47-b	4-g-3	66	4-f-X
47-е	NEW	67	59
47-d	4-g-4	68	59
48	. 4-g-5	69	60
49	4-e-3	70	52
50	4-e-3	70-a	52-a
51	50	70-b	52-b
52	4-f-1	71	53
52-a	4-f-I-1	72	NEW
52-b	4-f-I-2	73	54

•

NEW LAW Section	OLD LAW Section	NEW LAW	OLD LAW
73-a	NEW	Section 94	Section 70
73-b	54-c	95	
73-e	54-d	96	NEW NEW
73-d	54-e	97	NEW
73-e	54-b	98	NE W 77
73-f	54-f	99	78
73-g	54	100	78
74	NEW	101	79
75	54-a	101	80
76	. NEW	102	81
77	55	103-a	81-1
78	54-NEW	103-b	81-2
79	NEW	103-е	81-3
80	52-1	104	81
81	56	105	81
82	57	106	81
83	61	107	82
83-a	61-a	108	83
83-b	61-b	109	84
83-c	61-c	110	76
84	62	111	71-NEW
85	NEW	112	72
86	63-64-NEW	113	72
87	NEW	114	73
88	NEW	115	74
89	NEW	116	75
90	84	117	85
91	NEW	118	86
92	70	119	87
93	70	120	88

NEW LAW Section	OLD LAW Section	NEW LAW Section	OLD LAW Section
121	89	135	40-41
122	20	136	43
123	23	137	44-45
124	23	138	NEW
124-a	23-1		
124-b	23-2	139	23-8
124-c	23-3	140	66
125	23-4	141	67
126	26	142	68
127	27	143	11
128	28	144	32
129	28	145	33
129-a	28-1	146	34
129-b	28-2	147	NEW
129-е	28-2	148	NEW
130	29	149	NEW
131	29	150	92
132	31	151	91
133	21	152	93
134	30	153	94

Workmen's Compensation Law

SENATE BILL NO. 59. BY SENATORS FINCHER AND O'BRIEN, AND MR. STEPHENSON.

AN ACT TO DETERMINE. DEFINE AND PRESCRIBE THE RELATIONS BETWEEN EMPLOYER AND EMPLOYE AND PROVIDING FOR COMPENSATION AND BENE-FITS TO EMPLOYES AND THEIR DEPENDENTS FOR ACCIDENTAL INJURY TO OR DEATH OF EMPLOYES FOR INSURANCE OF SUCH COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS: CREATING A STATE COMPENSATION IN-SURANCE FUND TO PROVIDE SUCH INSURANCE. AND PROVIDING FOR ITS ADMINISTRATION BY THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF COLORADO; PROVID-ING FOR THE EXCISE OF THE POWERS AND DUTIES AND PROVISIONS OF THIS ACT BY THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF COLORADO: PRESCRIBING ITS POWERS AND DUTIES AND METHOD OF PROCEED-URE; PROVIDING FOR REVIEW OF ITS PROCEED-INGS; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF THIS ACT; REPEALING ALL ACTS AND PARTS OF ACTS IN CONFLICT WITH THIS ACT: CONTINUING THE JURISDICTION OF THE INDUSTRIAL COMMIS-SION OF COLORADO IN CASES ARISING UNDER PRIOR ACTS; VALIDATING ITS METHOD OF PROCED-URE UNDER FORMER ACTS; AND DECLARING THIS ACT TO BE NECESSARY FOR THE IMMEDIATE PRE-SERVATION OF PUBLIC PEACE, HEALTH AND SAFETY.

Be it Enacted by the General Asseembly of the State of Colorado:

Section 1. This Act shall be known and may be cited as, "Workmen's Compensation Act of Colorado."

Section 2. The Industrial Commission of Colorado, created by the Act of the General Assembly of Colorado, shall enforce and administer the provisions of this Act. The said Commission, in the administration of this Act shall be governed by its provisions if there be conflict between the same and the provisions of the Act creating said Commission.

DEFINITIONS.

Section 3. The term "Commission" when used in this Act shall mean the Industrial Commission of Colorado.

Section 4. Unless the context otherwise requires, a word used in this Act in the singular number shall also include the plural; and the masculine gender shall include feminine and neuter.

Section 5. The term "order" shall mean and include any decision, finding and award, classification, rate, rule, regulation, direction, requirement or standard of the Commission, or any other determination arrived at or decision made by such Commission.

Section 6. The term "place of employment" shall mean and include every place whether indoors or outdoors or underground, and the premises, work places, works and plants appertaining thereto or used in connection therewith, where either temporarily or permanently any industry, trade or business is carried on, or where any process or operation directly or indirectly relating to any industry, trade or business is carried on, or where any person is directly or indirectly employed by another for direct or indirect gain or profit, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Act.

Section 7. The term "employment" shall mean and include any trade, occupation, job or position, or process of manufacture or any method of carrying on any such trade, occupation, job or position or process of maufacture in which any person may be engaged, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Act.

Section 8. The term "employer" shall mean and include:

(a) The State, and each county, city, town, irrigation, drainage and school district therein, and all public institutions and administrative boards thereof without regard to the number of persons in the service of any such public employer; and provided that all such public employers shall be at all times subject to the compensation provisions of this Act.

(b) Every person, association of persons, firm and private corporation (including any public service corporation), personal representative, assignee, trustee or receiver, who has four or more persons engaged in the same business or employment (except as otherwise expressly provided in this Act), in service under any contract of hire, express or implied, and who, at or prior to the time of the accident to the employe for the compensation is claimed under this Act, has elected to become subject to the provisions of this Act, and who shall not, prior to such accident, have effected a withdrawal of such election in the manner provided in this Act. (c) This Act is not intended to apply to employers of private domestic servants or farm and ranch labor, nor to employers who employ less than four employes in the same business, or in or about the same place of employment; provided, that any such employer may elect to accept the provisions of this Act in the manner herein provided.

Section 9. The term "employe" shall mean and include:

(a) Every person in the service of the State, or of any county, city, town, irrigation, drainage, or school district therein, or any public institution or administrative board thereof, under any appointment or contract of hire, express or implied, except an elective official of the State, or any county, city, town, irrigation, drainage, or school district therein, or of any public institution or administrative board thereof; except all officers and enlisted men of the National Guard of the State of Colorado. Policemen and firemen shall be deemed employes, within the meaning of this paragraph: Provided, that any policeman or fireman, or if killed, any dependent, claiming compensation under this Act shall have deducted from such compensation any sum which such policeman or fireman, or their dependent may receive from any pension or any benefit fund to which the municipality may contribute.

(b) Every person in the service of any other person, association of persons, firm, private corporation, including any public service corporation, personal representative, assignee, trustee, or receiver, under any contract of hire, express or implied, including aliens and also including minors, whether lawfully or unlawfully employed (who for the purpose of this Act shall be considered the same, and shall have the same power of contracting with respect to their employment, as adult employes), but not including any persons who are expressly excluded from this Act or whose employment is but casual and not in the usual course of trade, business, profession or occupation of his employer.

Section 10. The provisions of this Act shall not apply to common carriers engaged in interstate commerce nor to their employes.

LOANING SERVICES.

Section 11. Where an employer, who has accepted the provisions of this Act and has complied therewith, shall loan the service of any of his employes who have accepted the provisions of this Act, to any third person, he shall be liable for any compensation thereafter for any injuries or death of said employe as in this Act provided, unless it shall appear from the evidence in said case that said loaning constitutes a new contract of hire express or implied between the employe whose services were loaned and the person to whom he was loaned.

ABBROGATION OF DEFENSES.

Section 12. In an action to recover damages for a personal injury sustained by an employe on and after the first day of August, 1915, while engaged in the line of his duty as such, or for death resulting from personal injuries so sustained, in which recovery is sought upon the ground of want of ordinary care of the employer, or of the officer, agent or servant of the employer, it shall not be a defense:

(a) That the employe, either expressly or impliedly, assumed the risk of the hazard complained of as due to the employer's negligence.

(b) That the injury or death was caused, in whole or in part, by the want of ordinary care of a fellow servant.

(c) That the injury or death was caused, in whole or in part by the want of ordinary care of the injured employe where such want of care was not wilful.

Section 13. Any employer who has elected to and has complied with the provisions of this Act, including the provisions relating to insurance, shall not be subject to the provisions of Section 12 of this Act; nor shall such employer be subject to any other liability whatsoever for the death of or personal injury to any employe, except as in this Act provided; and all courses of action, actions at law, suits in equity, and proceedings whatever, and all statutory and common law rights and remedies for and on account of such death or personal injury to any such employe are hereby abolished except as in this Act provided.

Section 14. If an employer has elected to and has complied with the provisions of this Act, including the provisions thereof relating to insurance, and an action is brought against such employer to recover damages for personal injuries or death sustained by an employe who has elected not to come under this Act, then such employer shall have all the defenses to such an action which he would have had if this Act and that certain other Act entitled, "An Act Concerning Assumption of Risk," being Chapter 43, page 115, of the Session Laws of 1913, and an Act entitled, "To give a Right of Action against an Employer for Injuries or Death resulting to his Agents, Employes, or Servants, etc.," same being Chapter 113, page 294 of the Session Laws of 1911, and also an Act entitled, "To Relieve Employes and Workmen from Assuming the Risk of Injury or Death, etc.," same being Chapter 72, page 197, Session Laws of 1915 had not been enacted.

RIGHT TO COMPENSATION-EXCLUSIVE WHEN.

Section 15. The right to the compensation provided for in this Act, in lieu of any other liability whatsoever, to any and all persons whomsoever, for any personal injury accidentally sustained or death resulting therefrom, on and after Aug. 1st, 1915, shall obtain in all cases where the following conditions occur:

(a) Where, at the time of the accident, both employer and employe are subject to the provisions of this Act; and where the employer has complied with the provisions thereof regarding insurance.

(b) Where, at the time of the accident, the employe is performing service arising out of and in the course of his employment.

(c) Where the injury or death is proximately caused by accident arising out of and in the course of his employment, and is not intentionally self-inflicted.

ELECTION AND ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION.

Section 16. On and after August 1st, 1915, every employer of four or more employes, not including private domestic servants and farm and ranch laborers, engaged in a common employment, shall be conclusively presumed, when he becomes the employer of four or more persons to have accepted the provisions of this Act, unless prior to that date, such employer shall have filed with the Commission a notice in writing to the effect that he elects not to accept the provision of this Act; provided, however, that any employer commencing business subsequent to August 1st, 1915, or not having in his employ four or more employes on said date, may make his election not to become subject to the provisions of this Act at any time prior to becoming an employer of four or more employes, in a common employment, exclusive of private domestic servants, and farm and ranch laborers, by giving written notice as above provided. If such written notice is not given prior to said employer becoming the employer of four or more employes, said employer shall be conclusively presumed to have accepted the provisions of this Act, subject, however, to the right of withdrawal, as herein provided.

Section 17. Election on the part of any employer to be subject to this Act, including the employer of private domestic servants, farm and ranch laborers or of three or less employes. may be made by filing with the Commission a written statement to the effect that he accepts the provisions of this Act, the filing of which statement shall operate to subject such employer to the provisions of this Act for the term of one (1) year from the date of filing such statement, and thereafter, without further act on his part, for successive terms of one year each, unless such employer shall, at least sixty days prior to the expiration of such first or any succeeding year, file in the office of said Commission a notice in writing to the effect that he desires to withdraw his election to be subject to the provisions of this Act. Section 18. Any employe may become subject to the provisions of this Act, and shall be deemed to have accepted, and shall be subject to the provisions thereof if at the time of the accident upon which liability is claimed,—

(a) His employer is subject to the provisions of this Act and has complied with the requirements thereof, including insurance; and if,

(b) Such employe shall not, at the time of entering into his contract of hire, expressed or implied with such employer, have given to his employer notice in writing that he elects not to be subject to the provisions of this Act.

Section 19. Such election and compliance with the provisions of this Act, including the provisions for insurance, shall be, and be construed to be, a surrender by the employer and the employe of their rights to any other method, form or amount of compensation or determination thereof, or to any cause of action, action at law, suit in equity or statutory or common law right or remedy or proceeding whatever for or on account of such personal injuries or death of such employe than as provided in this Act, and shall be an acceptance of all of the provisions of this Act, and shall bind the employe himself, and for compensation for his death, shall bind his personal representatives, his widow and next of kin, as well as the employer, and those conducting his business during bankruptcy or insolvency.

Section 20. Every employer, not electing to accept or rejecting the provisions of this Act, shall cause printed notices thereof to be kept posted in and about his place of employment in a conspicuous manner and in sufficient places frequented by his employes, as to reasonably notify such employes that he is not subject to the provisions of this Act, and shall likewise cause similar notice to be given of the filing of any change of such election on his part.

INSURANCE.

Section 21. Any employer electing to become subject to the provisions of this Act shall secure compensation for his employes in one of the following ways, which shall be deemed to be compliance with the insurance requirements of this Act:

(a) By insuring and keeping insured the payment of such compensation in the State Compensation Insurance Fund, or,

(b) By insuring and keeping insured the payment of such compensation with any stock or mutual corporation authorized to transact the business of Workmen's Compensation Insurance in this State. If insurance be so effected in such stock or mutual corporation, the employer or insurer shall forthwith file with the Commission, in form prescribed by it, a notice specifying the name of the insured and the insurer, the business and place of business of the insured and the effective and termination dates of the pólicy, also, when requested, a copy of the contract or policy of insurance.

(c) By procuring a self-insurance permit from the Commission as hereinafter provided.

Provided, however, that the State itself, and each county, city, town, irrigation, drainage and school district therein and each public institution and each administrative board thereof shall, at all times, insure and keep insured the payment of such compensation in the State Compensation Insurance Fund.

Section 22. Every contract for the insurance of compensation herein provided for or against liability therefor, shall be deemed to be made subject to all the provisions of this Act, and all provisions in such contract for insurance, inconsistent with the provisions of this Act, shall be void. The Industrial Commission shall from time to time approve and prescribe a standard or universal form, as nearly as possible, for every contract or policy of insurance, endorsement, rider, letter, or other document affecting such contract, for use in insuring the compensation herein provided for.

Section 23. Every insurance carrier authorized to transact business in this State, which insures employers against liability for compensation, under the provisions of this Act, shall file with the Commission its classification of risks, and premiums relating thereto, and any subsequent proposed classification of risks and premiums together with all rates and any system or systems of rating, none of which shall take effect until approved by the Industrial Commission, and said Commission shall have the power to disapprove same as inadequate. The Commission may, at any time, withdraw its approval of any rate or system of rating.

Section 24. Every insurance carrier writing compensation insurance shall write said insurance at the rate or rates approved as adequate by the Industrial Commission, and the cutting of rates or rebating, or any other method whereby directly or indirectly any employer is given the benefit of, or obtains a rate lower than that approved by the Industrial Commission is hereby prohibited. Any insurance carrier or any employer or any officer, agent or employe of either, violating any of the provisions of this Section shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and may be punished by a fine of not more than \$500.00 or imprisonment for a period not longer than thirty days, or both such fine and imprisonment.

Section 25. Every contract insuring against liability for compensation or insurance policy evidencing the same, must contain a clause to the effect that the insurance carrier shall be directly and primarily liable to the employe, and in the event of his death, to his dependents, to pay compensation, if any, for which the employer is liable, thereby discharging to the extent of such payment the obligations of the employer to the employe; that, as between the employe and the insurance carrier, the notice to or knowledge of the occurrence of the injury on the part of the employer shall be deemed notice or knowledge, as the case may be, on the part of the insurance carrier; that jurisdiction of the employer shall, for the purpose of this Act, be jurisdiction of the insurance carrier, and that the insurance carrier shall in all things be bound by and subject to the orders, findings, decisions or awards rendered against the employer under the provisions of this Act.

Such policy must also provide that the employe shall have a first lien upon any amount which shall become owing to the employer from the insurance carrier, and the said insurance carrier may and shall pay the same directly to the said employe or his dependents, thereby discharging to the extent of such payment the obligation of the employer to the employe, and such policy shall not contain any provisions relieving the insurance carrier from payment when the employer becomes legally incapable, insolvent, or is discharged in bankruptcy, or otherwise, during the period that the policy is in operation or the compensation remains owing.

Section 26. If any insurance carrier intentionally, knowingly or wilfully violates any of the provisions of this Act, the Insurance Commissioner, on the request of the Industrial Commission, shall suspend or revoke the license or authority of such carrier to do a compensation business in this State.

Section 27. In any case where the employer is subject to the provisions of this Act by election or by nonrejection, and at the time of an injury has not complied with the insurance provisions of this Act, or has allowed his insurance to terminate or has not effected a renewal thereof, the employe, if injured or if killed, his dependents, if such employe has not rejected this Act as herein provided, may claim the compensation and benefits provided in this Act, and in any such case the amounts of compensation or benefits provided in this Act, shall be increased fifty per cent.

Section 28. Any insurance carrier operating under the terms and provisions of the Workmen's Compensation Act shall have the right to apply to the Industrial Commission for permission to examine any of the books, payrolls or other documents of any employer insured by such carrier, or of any contractor, subcontractor, lessee, sublessee, person or persons covered by the employer's compensation insurance to determine the amount of wage expenditure of such employer, or of any contractor, subcontractor, lessee, sublessee, person or persons during any period that such employer, or contractor, subcontractor, lessee, sublessee, person or persons was insured by such insurance carrier and the Commission may grant such carrier authority in writing to make such investigation, or may appoint any of its agents, to conduct such investigation.

SELF-INSURANCE.

Section 29. The Commission in its discretion may grant to any employer who has accepted the provisions of this Act, permission to be its own insurance carrier for the payment of the compensation and benefits herein provided. Such permission may be granted by the Commission after the filing by such employer of such statement or statements and the giving of such information as may be required by the Commission. The Commission shall have the sole power to prescribe the rules, regulations, orders, terms and conditions upon which said permit shall be granted or continued. Such permission for self-insurance may be revoked at any time by the Commission and such employer shall upon notice of revocation immediately insure otherwise his liability.

NOTICES AND REPORTS.

Section 30. Every employer shall keep a record of all injuries, fatal or otherwise, received by his employes in the course of their employment. Within ten days after the occurrence of an accident resulting in personal injury, a report thereof shall be made, in writing by the employer to the Commission, upon forms prescribed by the Commission for that purpose. Such report shall contain such information as shall be required by the Commission.

Section 31. Every employe who sustains an injury shall notify his employer of said injury within two days of its occurrence, unless said employe shall be physically or mentally unable to do so, or unless his employer or his foreman, superintendent, manager or other person in charge shall have actual notice of said injury. If said employe shall fail to report said injury he shall lose one day's compensation for each day's failure to so report; provided, however, that if anyone shall report the said accident for said injured employe within the time above specified, to his employer, then the injured employe shall be relieved from reporting the accident as provided above.

Section 32. Every employer shall furnish the Commission, upon request, all information required by it, to accomplish the purposes of this Act, which information shall be for the confidential use of said Commission unless otherwise ordered by it, and shall not be open to the public nor used in any court, or any action or proceeding pending therein, unless the Commission is a party to such action or proceeding. Section 33. Every employer receiving from the Commission any blanks with directions to fill out the same or requests for information required for the purposes of this Act shall properly fill out said blanks and furnish said information so requested fully and correctly. The Commission may require that any information requested by it be verified under oath and may fix the time within which said information shall be returned to it.

GENERAL POWERS.

Section 34. The Commission, or any of its agents, may enter into any place of employment for the purpose of collecting facts and statistics, examining the provisions made for the health, protection and safety of the employes and bringing to the attention of every employer any rule, order or requirement of the Commission, or any law, or any failure on the part of any employer to comply therewith.

Section 35. All books, records and pay-rolls of employers, or of any contractor, subcontractor, lessee, sublessee, person or persons, showing or reflecting in any way upon the amount of wage expenditure of such employers, contractor, subcontractor, lessee, sublessee, person or persons, and all other facts, data and statistics appertaining to the purposes of this Act, shall always be open for inspection by the Commission, or any of its agents, for the purpose of ascertaining the correctness of the reported wage expenditure, number of men employed and such other in formation as may be necessary for the uses and purposes of the Commission in its administration of this Act.

Section 36. In case any person fails or refuses to comply with any order of the Commission or obey any subpoena issued by it or its agents or to furnish the statistics, data, and information required to be furnished to the Commission by the provisions of this Act or refuse to permit an inspection as provided in this Act, or being in attendance refuses to be sworn or examined or answer a question or produce a book or paper when ordered so to do by the Commission or any of its deputies, agents, or referees, the Commission may apply to the District Court upon proof by affidavit of the facts for an order returnable in not less than three days nor more than five days directing such person to show cause before the District Court which made the order, why he should not be committed to jail. Upon the return of such order the District Court shall examine under oath such person and give him an opportunity to be heard and if the Court determine that he has refused without legal excuse in any one of the foregoing matters, it may forthwith by warrant commit the offender to jail, there to remain until he submits to do the act which he was required to do or until he is discharged according to law.

Section 37. All expenses incurred by the Commission pursuant to the provisions of this Act shall be paid from funds appro-

priated for the use of the Commission upon claims therefor, itemized and sworn to, made by the person who incurred the same, which shall be allowed by the Commission subject to the approval of the State Auditing Board, provided that the traveling expenses of any member or members of the Commission or of any employe or employes thereof incurred while on business of the Commission outside the State of Colorado, shall be paid in the manner aforesaid, but only when such expenses are in advance authorized to be incurred by the Commission and by the State Auditing Board.

Section 38. All orders of the Commission shall be valid and in force, and prima facie reasonable and lawful until they are found otherwise in an action brought for that purpose, pursuant to the provisions of this Act, or until altered or revoked by the Commission.

Section 39. A substantial compliance with the requirements of this Act, shall be sufficient to give effect to the orders or awards of the Commission and they shall not be declared inoperative, illegal or void for any ommission of a technical nature in respect thereto.

Section 40. For the purpose of making any investigation or conducting any hearing with regard to any matter or matters contemplated by the provisions of this Act, the Commission shall have power to appoint, by an order in writing, any competent person as an agent or referee whose duties shall be prescribed in such order.

(a) In the discharge of his duties such agent or referee shall have every power whatsoever for obtaining information granted in this Act to the Commission and all powers granted by law to officers authorized to take depositions are hereby granted to such agent.

(b) The Commission may conduct any number of such investigations contemporaneously through different agents or referees and may delegate to such agents the subpoenaing and swearing of witnesses, and the taking of all testimony bearing upon any investigation or hearing. The decision of the Commission shall be based upon its examination of all testimony and records. The recommendations made by such agents or referees shall not preclude any further investigation, or the taking of further testimony, if the Commission so order.

Section 41. The Commission shall have power to adopt reasonable and proper rules and regulations relative to the exercise of its powers and authorities and proper rules to govern its proceedings and to regulate the mode, and manner of investigations and hearings, and to alter and amend said rules from time to time in its discretion; such rules and regulations, amendments and alterations shall be effective ten days after same are adopted and posted. A copy of such rules and regulations shall be delivered to every person making application therefor, and to every insurance carrier doing business in this State by mailing a copy thereof to such insurance carrier at the address within this State as furnished the Commission by such insurance carrier.

Section 42. The Commission may employ and maintain in the department a compensation actuary who shall be experienced and skilled and fully competent to perform the duties of the position and who shall assist in or take charge of the practical operation of the State Compensation Insurance Fund under the general direction of the Commission. The Actuary shall receive such salary as may be agreed upon by the Commission.

Section 43. The Commission shall have power, to employ during their pleasure such deputies, experts, statisticians, accountants, actuaries, inspectors, clerks and other employes as they may deem necessary to carry out the provisions of this Act or to perform the duties and exercise the powers conferred by law upon the Commission. Such deputies, statisticians, accountants, inspectors, clerks and all other employes, except experts and actuaries in the employ of the Commission, shall have been for two years prior to such employment or appointment, bona fide residents of the State of Colorado, and each and all of them, except only the experts, shall, while in the employ of the Commission.

Section 44. All deputies, statisticians, accountants, actuaries, clerks, experts, and all other employes of the Commission shall receive such compensation as may be fixed by law or by the Commission, and their salaries so fixed, as aforesaid shall be paid monthly from the funds appropriated for the use of the Commission, after being approved by the Commission.

Section 45. It shall be the duty of all officers and employes of the State, counties and municipalities, upon the request of the Commission to enforce in their respective departments, all lawful orders of the Commission in so far as the same may be applicable and consistent with the general duties of such officers and employes, and it shall also be their duty to make to the Commission such reports as it may require concerning matters within their knowledge appertaining to the purposes of this Act, and to furnish to it such facts, data, statistics and information as may from time to time come to them appertaining to the purposes of this Act, and the duties of the Commission thereunder, and particularly all information coming to their knowledge respecting the condition of all places of employment subject to the provisions of this Act, as regards the health, protection and safety of employes, and the hazard of risk of such places of employment.

Section 46. Such employes of the Commission as shall be directed by the Commission shall furnish surety company bonds in such sum as may be fixed by the Commission, the premiums therefor to be paid as other expenses of the Commission are paid.

EARNINGS.

Section 17. The average weekly wage of the injured employe shall be taken as the basis upon which to compute benefits and shall be determined as follows:

(a) Whenever the term "wages" is need it shall be construed to mean the money rate at which the services rendered are recompensed under the contract of hire in force at the time of the accident, either express or implied, and shall not include gratnities received from employers or others nor shall it include the amounts deducted by the employer nuder the contract of hire for material, supplies, tools and other things furnished and paid for by the employer and necessary for the performance of such contract by the employe, but the term "wages" shall include the reasonable value of board, rent, housing, lodging or any other similar advantages received from the employer, the reasonable value of which shall be fixed and determined from the facts by the Commission in each particular case.

(b) The total amount earned by the injured or killed employe in the six months preceding the accident shall be computed, which sum shall be divided by twenty-six and the result thus ascertained shall be considered as the average weekly wage of said injured or deceased employe, for the purpose of computing the benefits provided by this Act, except as hereinafter provided.

(c) Provided further, however, that in any case where the foregoing method of computing the average weekly wage of the employe by reason of the nature of the employment or the fact that the injured employe has not worked a sufficient length of time to enable his earnings to be fairly computed thereunder or has been ill or in business for himself or where for any other reason said methods will not fairly compute the average weekly wage, the Commission may in each particular case compute the average weekly wage of said employe by taking the daily earnings at the time of the accident or compute it in such other manner and by such other method as will in the opinion of the Commission, based upon the facts presented, fairly determine such employe's average weekly wage.

(d) Where an employe is a minor the average weekly wage of such minor shall be determined by this Commission on the basis of the earnings that such minor, if not disabled or killed, would probably have earned during the period for which compensation is granted. Section 48. The fact that an employe has suffered a previous disability or received compensation therefor, shall not preelude compensation for a later injury or for death, but in determining compensation for the later injury or death his average weekly earnings shall be such sum as will reasonably represent his average weekly earning capacity at the time of the latter injury and shall be arrived at according to and subject to the limitations in the foregoing sections.

CONTRACTORS AND LESSEES.

Section 49. Any person, company or corporation operating or engaged in or conducting any business by leasing, or contracting out any part or all of the work thereof to any lessee, sublessee, contractor or subcontractor, shall irrespective of the unmber of employes engaged in such work, be construed to be and be an employer as defined in this Act and shall be liable as provided in this Act to pay compensation for injury or death resulting therefrom to said lessees, sublessees, contractors and subcontractors and their employes, and such employer as in this section defined shall, before commencing said work insure and shall keep insured his liability as herein provided and such lessee. sublessee, contractor or subcontractor, as well as any employe of such lessee, sublessee, contractor, or subcontractor, shall each and all of them be deemed employes as defined in this Act. Such employer shall be entitled to recover the cost of such insurance from said lessee, sublessee, contractor, or subcontractor, and may withhold and deduct the same from the contract price or any royalties or other money due, owing or to become due said lessee, sublessee, contractor, or subcontractor; provided, however, that if said lessee, or sublesseee, contractor or subcontractor doing any work as in this Section provided shall himself be an employer as defined in this Act in the doing of such work and shall before commencing said work insure and shall keep insured his liability for compensation as herein provided then and in that case such person, company or corporation operating, engaged in, or conducting said business shall not be subject to the provisions of this Section.

Section 50. Every person, company or corporation, that owns any real property or improvements thereon and that contracts out any work done on and to said property to any contractor, subcontractor, person or persons, who shall hire or use four or more employes or workmen (including himself if working thereon) in the doing of such work, shall be deemed to be an employer under the terms of this Act and every such contractor and subcontractor, person or persons, as well as his or their employes shall each and all of them be deemed to be employes as defined in this Act and such employer shall be liable as provided in this Act to pay compensation for injury or death resulting therefrom to said contractor, and subcontractor and their employes and shall before commencing said work insure and shall keep insured his liability as herein provided. Such employer shall be entitled to recover the cost of such insurance from said contractor, subcontractor, person or persons, and may withhold and deduct the same from the contract price or any royalties or other money due, owing or to become due said contractor, or subcontractor, person or persons; provided, however, that if said contractor, subcontractor, person or persons doing or undertaking to do any work for an owner of property as above provided shall himself be an employer as defined in this Act and shall before commencing said work insure and shall keep insured his liability for compensation as herein provided then and in that case said owner of said property shall not be subject to the provisions of this Section.

MEDICAL, SURGICAL AND HOSPITAL.

Section 51. Every employer regardless of his method of insurance shall inruish such medical, surgical, mursing and hospital treatment, medical, hospital and surgical supplies, crutches and apparatus, as may reasonably be needed at the time of the injury and thereafter during the disability, but not exceeding sixty days from the date of the accident and \$200 in value to cure and relieve from the effects of the injury; provided, however, that every employer subject to the terms and provisions of this Act must insure his liability for the medical, surgical and hospital expenses herein provided for, unless permission is given by the Industrial Commission to such employer to operate under a medical plan as hereinafter set forth.

Every plan which is in force at the time of the adoption of this Act, or which is hereafter agreed to between employer and employe, for the furnishing of medical, surgical and hospital treatment whether the employe is to pay any part of the expense of such treatment or not shall before being put into effect, receive the approval of the Industrial Commission, which shall have full power and authority to formulate the terms and conditions under which any such plan may operate and the essentials thereof, and it may at any time order modifications or changes in any said plan or withdraw its approval thereof; provided, however, that no plan shall be approved by the Commission which relieves the employer from the burden of assuming and paying for any part of the medical, surgical and hospital services and supplies hereinabove required.

The Commission shall have the power to establish a schedule fixing the fees for which all medical, surgical and hospital treatment rendered to employes under this Section shall be compensated.

DEPENDENCY.

Section 52. For the purpose of this Act the following described persons shall be conclusively presumed to be wholly dependent:

(a) Wife, unless it be shown that she was voluntarily separated and living apart from the husband at the time of his injury or death and was not dependent in whole cr in part on him for support.

(b) Minor children of the deceased under the age of eighteen years. The term "minor child" shall include posthumous children or a child legally adopted prior to the injury.

Section 53. Children eighteen years of age or over, husband, mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, sister, or brother, who were wholly or partially supported by the deceased employe at the time of his death and for a reasonable period of time immediately prior thereto, shall be considered his actual dependents. If such dependents be a son eighteen years of age or over, a husband, father, grandfather, or brother to be entitled to compensation, they must prove that they were incapable of or actually disabled from earning their own living during the said time, provided, however, if said incapacity or disability is temporary only, compensation shall be paid only during the period of such temporary incapacity or disability.

Section 54. In case of death, the dependents of deceased entitled thereto, shall receive as compensation or death benefits 50% of the deceased employe's average weekly wages not to exceed a maximum of \$10.00 per week and not less than a minimum of \$5.00 per week, for a period not to exceed six years from the date of the death of the injured employe, less any sums paid to the employe prior to his death as compensation for his disability as in this Act provided.

Section 55. In the case of remarriage of the husband or wife of a deceased employe, without children, he or she shall receive, at the time of marriage, a lump sum settlement without commutation equal to one-half of the amount of compensation then remaining unpaid; provided however, that if such husband or wife has had a lump sum or lump sums granted to him or her during a six months period immediately preceding said remarriage, the lump sum settlement shall be determined by the following basis:

The Commission shall determine the amount of compensation which would have been unpaid at the date of remarriage under the terms of the award if a lump sum or lump sums had not been granted within said six months period. From one-half of said sum, the Commission shall then deduct the actual amount paid to such husband or wife on all lump sums granted during said six months period and the balance of said one-half, if any, shall be paid to said husband or wife at the time of remarriage without commutation.

In case of remarriage of husband or wife of a deceased employe, who has a dependent child or children, the entire unpaid balance of compensation shall be paid such child or children.

Section 56. Partial dependents shall be entitled to receive only that portion of the benefits provided for those wholly dependent which the average amount of the wages regularly contributed by the deceased to such partial dependents at and for a reasonable time immediately prior to the injury bore to the total income of the dependents during the same time. The Commission shall have power and discretion to determine the proper elements to be considered as income of said dependents in each particular case. Where there are persons both wholly dependent and partially dependent, only those wholly dependent shall be entitled to compensation.

Section 57. The question as to who constitute dependents and the extent of their dependency shall be determined as of the date of the accident to the injured employe and the right to death benefit shall become fixed as of said date irrespective of any subsequent change in conditions and such death benefit shall be directly payable to the dependent or dependents entitled thereto or to their legal representatives.

Section 58. When the right to a death benefit shall become fixed it shall cease, lapse or terminate upon the happening of any of the following contingencies :

(a) Upon marriage, with the exception as to lump sum settlement, as herein provided.

(b) Upon the death of any dependent; provided, however, that in any case where the share of any dependent shall cease, lapse or terminate it shall survive to the remaining dependents.

(c) When a son of the deceased reaches the age of eighteen years, except as otherwise provided in Section 53 hereof.

Section 59. When as a proximate result of an accident death occurs to an injured employe, there shall be paid in one lump sum within thirty days after his death the sum of \$75.00 for his reasonable funeral and burial expenses. Said sum may be paid to the undertaker or to any other person who may have paid the undertaker, if the Commission so orders. If the employe leaves no dependents compensation shall be limited to said sum and the compensation, if any, which has accrued to date of death, and the medical, surgical and hospital expenses herein provided. If the deceased employe leaves dependents said sum shall be paid in addition to all other sums of compensation herein provided for. Section 60. No dependent of an injured employe shall be deemed, during the life of the employe, a party in interest to any proceeding by him for the enforcement of any claim for compensation nor as respects any settlement thereof by said employe.

Section 61. Illegitimate minor children of deceased putative father shall be entitled to compensation in the same respect as a legitimate minor child of said decedent, when it is proved to the satisfaction of the Commission that the father has, during his lifetime, acknowledged said child or children to be his and has regularly contributed to its or their support and maintenance for a reasonable period of time prior to his death.

Section 62. In case death occurs more than two years after the date of the receiving of any injury such death shall be prima facie presumed not to be due to such injury.

Section 63. In case death proximately results from the injury within a period of two years, the benefits shall be in the amounts and to the persons following:

(a) If there be no dependents compensation shall be limited to the expenses provided for medical, hospital and funeral of deceased, together with such sums as may have accrued or been paid to deceased during his lifetime for disability.

(b) If there are wholly dependent persons at the time of death, the payment shall be 50% of the average weekly wages, subject to the limitations of this Act as to maximum and minimum weekly amount, and to continue for the remainder of the period from the date of the death and not to exceed six years after the date of the injury and not to amount to more than a maximum of \$3125.00, less the sums, if any, paid to deceased during his lifetime.

(c) If there are partly dependent persons at the time of the death, the payment shall be not to exceed 50% of the average weekly wages subject to the limitations of the minimum and maximum weekly amount and to continue for such portion of six years after the date of the injury as shall be required to pay, at the said weekly rate, the total amount awarded by the Commission to be paid to such partial dependent or partial dependents.

Section 64. If death occurs to an injured employe other than as a proximate result of accident before disability indemnity ceases, and the deceased leaves a person or persons wholly dependent upon him for support, death benefits shall be as follows:

(a) Where the accident proximately caused permanent total disability, the death benefit shall consist of the unpaid and unaccrued portion of the permanent total disability benefit which the employe would have received had he lived until he had re ceived the sum of \$3125.00.

(b) Where the accident proximately caused permanent partial disability, the death benefit shall consist of the unpaid and unaccrued portion of the permanent partial disability benefit which the employe would have received had he lived.

Section 65. If death occurs to an injured employe other than as a proximate result of the accident before disability indemnity ceases, and the deceased leaves a person or persons partially dependent upon him for support, death benefits shall be as follows:

(a) Where the accident proximately caused permanent total disability, the death benefit shall consist of that proportion of the unpaid and unaccrued portion of the permanent total disability benefit which the employe would have received had he lived until he had received the sum of thirty-one hundred, twentyfive dollars, as the amount devoted by the deceased for the support of such person or persons for the year immediately prior to the accident bears to the total income of the person or persons during said year.

(b) Where the accident caused permanent partial disability the death benefit shall consist of that proportion of the unpaid and unaccrued portion of the permanent partial disability benefit which the employe would have received if he had lived, as the amount devoted by the deceased to the support of such person or persons for the year immediately prior to the accident bears to the total income of the person or persons during said year.

Section 66. Death benefits under the provisions of this Act to dependents who are nonresidents of the United States at the time of the death of the injured employe shall be one-third of the amount or amounts provided herein, provided that, in no event, shall death benefits to dependents who are nonresidents of the United States exceed the aggregate sum of \$1041.66.

Section 67. Death benefits shall be paid to such one or more of the dependents of the decedent for the benefit of all the dependents entitled to such compensation as may be determind by the Commission who may apportion the benefits among such dependents in such manner as it may deem just and equitable. Payment to a dependent subsequent in right may be made, if the Commission deems it proper, which payment shall operate to discharge all other claims therefor. The dependents or persons to whom benefits are paid shall apply the same to the use of the several beneficiaries thereof, according to their respective claims upon the decedent for support in compliance with the finding and direction of the Commission.

Section 68. In all cases of death where the dependents are one or more minor children, it shall be sufficient for the widow or a friend to make application and claim on behalf of said minor children. The Commission, for the purpose of protecting the rights and interests of any dependent who it may deem incapable of fully protecting his or her own interests, may provide for the manner and method of safe-guarding the payments due such dependent or dependents in such manner as it may see fit.

Section 69. Payment of death benefits to one or more dependents shall protect and discharge to that extent all compensation under this Act, unless and until any other person claiming to be a dependent shall have given the Commission notice of his claim and until the Commission shall have notified the employer or his insurance carrier of such claim. In such case the Commission shall determine the respective rights of the said rival claimants, and thereafter such death benefits shall be paid to such dependents as it may find so entitled, under the provisions of this Act.

ACCIDENT BENEFITS.

Section 70. If the accident causes disability, a disability indemnity shall be payable as wages, upon the 18th day after the injured employe leaves work as the result of the injury and thereafter regularly but not less frequently than once in each calendar month, unless otherwise ordered by the Commission, subject, however, to the following limitations:

(a) If the period of disability does not last longer than ten days from the day the employe leaves work as the result of the injury, no disability indemnity whatever shall be recoverable except the disbursement in this Act provided for medical, surgical, nursing and hospital services, apparatus and supplies; nor in any case unless the Commission has actual knowledge of the injury or is notified thereof within the period specified in this Act.

(b) If the period of disability lasts longer than ten days from the day the injured employe leaves work as the result of the injury no disability indemnity shall be recoverable for the first ten days of disability.

Section 71. In case of temporary disability of more than ten days duration, the employe shall receive fifty per cent of this average weekly wages so long as such disability is total not to exceed a maximum of \$10.00 per week and not less than a minimum of \$5.00 per week unless the employe's wages shall be less than \$5.00 per week, in which event he shall receive compensation equal to his average weekly wages.

Section 72. In case of injury resulting in temporary partial disability, the employe shall receive 50 per cent of the impairment of his earning capacity during the continuance thereof, not to exceed the maximum sum of \$10.00 per week, or the aggregate sum of \$1300.00.

Section 73. In cases included in the following schedule the disability in each case shall be deemed to continue for the period specified and the compensation to be paid for such loss shall be as specified herein, to-wit:

The loss of one arm between elbow and shoulder	208	weeks
The loss of forearm between wrist and elbow	139	weeks
The loss of a hand	104	weeks
The loss of a palm, where thumb remains	70	weeks
The loss of a thumb and the metacarpal bone thereof	50	weeks
The loss of a thumb at the proximal joint	35	weeks
The loss of a thumb the second or distal joint	18	weeks
The loss of an index finger and the metacarpal bone		
thereof		weeks
Loss of an index finger at the proximal joint		weeks
Loss of an index finger at the second joint		weeks
Loss of an index finger at the distal joint		weeks
Loss of a second finger and the metacarpal bone thereof		weeks
Loss of a middle finger at the proximal joint		weeks
Loss of the middle finger at the second joint	0	weeks
Loss of the middle finger at the distal joint	5	weeks
Loss of a third or ring finger and the metacarpal bone thereof	11	weeks
Loss of a ring finger at the proximal joint		weeks
Loss of a ring finger at the proximal joint		weeks
Loss of a ring finger at the second joint		weeks
Loss of a ring inger at the distal joint		weeks
Loss of a little finger at the proximal joint		weeks
Loss of a little finger at the proximal joint	-	weeks
Loss of a little finger at the second joint	Ū	weeks
Loss of all the fingers of one hand where the thumb	4	WEEKS
and palm remains	52	weeks
Loss of a leg at the hip joint or so near thereto as to		
preclude the use of an artificial limb	208	weeks
The loss of a leg at or above the knee, where the stump		
remains sufficient to permit the use of an artificial limb	139	weeks
The loss of a foot at the ankle		
The loss of a great toe with the metatarsal bone thereof		
of the second se		

The loss of a great toe at the proximal joint	18	weeks
The loss of a great toe at the second joint	9	weeks
The loss of any other toe with the metatarsal bone		
thereof	11	weeks
The loss of any other toe at the proximal joint	4	weeks
The loss of any other toe at the second or distal joint	4	weeks
The loss of all the toes of one foot	35	weeks
The loss of an eye by enucleation (including disfigure-		
ment resulting therefrom)	139	weeks
Total blindness of one eye	104	weeks
Total deafness of both ears	139	weeks
Total deafness of one ear	35	weeks
Where workman prior to injury has suffered a total loss of hearing in one ear and as a result of the		
accident loses total hearing in remaining ear		weeks

(a) The periods of time specified in the foregoing schedule shall commence to run from the date of actual loss of any member or members.

(b) For the purpose of this schedule, permanent and complete paralysis of any member as the proximate result of accidental injury shall be deemed equivalent to the loss thereof.

(c) Whenever amputation is made between any two joints mentioned in this schedule (except amputation between the knee and hip-joint) the resulting loss shall be estimated as if the amputation had been made at the joint nearest thereto.

(d) The amounts specified in this Section are all subject to the limitations as to weekly maximum and minimum indemnity provided herein, for injuries causing temporary total disability.

(e) When by reason of infection or any other cause resulting from such injury, which is not due to the neglect or misconduct of the injured employe, he is actually disabled longer than the time specified in the foregoing schedule, complemention may be awarded by the Commission for the period of additional disability within the limits otherwise provided in this Act.

(f) When an injurce employe sustains two injuries coming under this schedule, the disabilities specified herein shall be added and the injured employe shall receive the sum of the two.

(g) Where an injury causes the loss of use or partial loss of use of any member or members specified in the foregoing schedule, the Commission may determine the disability suffered and the amount of compensation to be awarded, by awarding compensation which shall bear such relation to the amount stated in the above schedule for the loss of a member or members as the disabilities bear to the loss produced by the injuries named in the schedule, or the Commission may award compensation under the permanent partial disability Section of this Statute as the Commission in its discretion may determine from the particular facts in each case.

Section 74. When an accident causes injury to the teeth of an employe, he shall in addition to receiving compensation for disability and the medical, surgical and hospital services provided herein, be entitled with the prior approval and consent of the Commission to receive such dental treatment and services as may reasonably be necessary to repair and alleviate the effects of the injury, not to exceed \$100.00 in value.

Section 75. If any employe is seriously permanently disfigured about the head or face, the Commission may allow, in addition to all other compensation benefits provided herein, such sum for compensation on account thereof as it may deem just, not exceeding \$500.00.

Section 76. Where an employe has previously suffered the loss of one hand or one arm or one foot or one leg or the vision of one eye and as a result of an accident arising out of and in the course of his employment, he suffers the loss of another hand, arm, foot, leg, or the vision of an eye, he shall be compensated as follows:

If the employe has previously lost vision of one eye and loses the vision of the remaining eye, he shall receive compensation for 312 weeks.

If the employe previously lost the vision of one eye and loses a hand, arm, foot or leg, he shall be compensated by receiving the schedule number of weeks for the loss of such member plus fifty per cent.

If the employe has previously lost the right hand and loses the left hand or arm or vice versa, he shall receive the schedule number of weeks for the loss of such member, plus 50%.

If the employe has previously lost the right arm and loses the left hand or arm, or vice versa, he shall receive twice the number of scheduled weeks for the loss of such member.

If the employe has previously lost a hand or arm and loses one foot, or leg or the vision of one eye, he shall receive as compensation the scheduled number of weeks for the loss of such member or loss of vision, plus 50%.

If the employe has previously lost the right foot and loses the left leg or foot, or vice versa, he shall receive the scheduled number of weeks for the loss of such member, plus 25%.

If the employe has previously lost the right leg and loses the left leg or foot, or vice versa, he shall receive the scheduled number of weeks for the loss of such member, plus 50%. If the employe has previously lost one leg or foot and loses one hand or arm or the vision of one eye, he shall receive compensation for the scheduled number of weeks for the loss of such member or loss of vision, plus 50%.

Compensation awarded in this section is subject to the maxinum and minimum weekly amounts herein specified for accidents causing temporary total disability.

Section 77. In cases of permanent total disability, the award shall be fifty per cent of the average weekly wages of the injured employe and shall continue until death of such person so totally disabled but not in excess of the weekly maximum and not less than the weekly minimum indemnity specified herein for injuries causing temporary total disability.

The loss of both hands or both arms or both feet or both legs or both eyes or of any two thereof, shall prima facie constitute total and permanent disability to be compensated according to the provisions of this Section; provided however, that where the disability comes under this Section and where the employer or the Commission obtains suitable employment for such disabled person which he can perform and which in all cases shall be subject to the sole approval of the Commission, the disabilities set out in this paragraph shall not constitute total disability during the continuance of the Commission's approval of said employment but such partial disability as may be determined by the Commission after a finding of the facts.

Section 78. Where an accident causes injury resulting in permanent partial disability (except the sustaining of any one of the specific injuries set forth in the schedule herein), the injured employe shall be deemed to be permanently partially disabled from the time he is so declared by the Commission and from said time shall be entitled to compensation for permanent partial disability in addition to any compensation theretofore allowed. In determining permanent partial disability the Commission shall ascertain in terms of percentage the extent of general permanent disability which the accident has caused, taking into consideration not only the general physical condition but the mental training, ability, former employment, and education of the injured employe. The Commission shall then determine the injured employe's expectancy of life from recognized expectancy tables and such other evidence relating to his expectancy as may be presented; it shall then ascertain the total amount which said employe would receive during the balance of his expectancy if permanently totally disabled at not more than the maximum nor less than the minimum weekly indemnity specified in this Act for temporary total disability and shall then take that percentage of the total sum so arrived at as is indicated by the percentage of general permanent disability found to exist in the manner as hereinabove set forth, not to exceed in any event, however, the aggregate sum of \$2600.00. Said sum to be paid at a weekly rate not more than the maximum nor less than the minimum herein specified for injuries causing total disability.

Section 79. Where an injured employe sustains a loss set forth in the schedule herein but in addition thereto receives other injuries which are sufficient in their nature to alone cause temporary total disability, said employe shall receive in addition to the amounts specified in said schedule, compensation for temporary total disability as long as said disability may be found to exist as a result of said other injuries.

Section 80. An employe in order to be entitled to compensation for hernia must clearly prove; first, that its appearance was accompanied by pain; second, that it was immediately preceded by some accidental strain suffered in the course of the employment. If an employe after establishing his right to compensation for hernia as above provided, elected to be operated upon, a special operating fee of not to exceed \$50.00 shall be paid by the employer, insurer, or Commission as the case may be. In case the employe elects not to be operated upon and the hernia becomes strangulated in the future the results from such strangulation will not be compensated.

Section 81. Whenever, in case of injury, the right to compensation under this Act would exist in favor of an employe, he shall upon the written request of his employer, or the insurer carrying such risk, submit himself from time to time, to examination by a physician or surgeon, who shall be provided and paid for by the employer, or insurer and shall likewise submit to examination from time to time by any regular physician selected and paid for by said Commission, or a member or examiner thereof. The employe shall be entitled to have a physician provided and paid for by himself present at any such examination. So long as the employe, after such written request of the employer or insurer, shall refuse to submit himself to such examination, or shall in any way obstruct the same, his right to collect or to begin or to maintain any proceeding for the collection of compensation shall be suspended; and if he shall refuse to submit to such examination, after direction by the Commission, or any member or examiner thereof, or shall, in any way obstruct the same, his right to weekly indemnity which shall accrue and become payable during the period of such refusal or obstruction, shall be barred. If any employe shall persist in any unsanitary or injurious practice which tends to imperil or retard his recovery or shall refuse to submit to such medical or surgical treatment as is reasonably essential to promote his recovery, the Commission may, in its discertion, reduce or suspend the compensation of any such injured employe. Any physician who shall make, or be present at any such examination, may be required to testify as to the results thereof. Any physician having attended an employe in a professional capacity may be required to testify before the Commission when it shall so direct. A physician will not be required, however, to disclose confidential communications imparted to him for the purpose of treatment and which are unnecessary to a proper understanding of the case. In all cases of injury, the employer or insurer, as the case may be, shall have the right in the first instance to select the physician who shall attend said injured employe, provided however, that if the services of a physician are not tendered at the time of injury, the employe shall have the right to select his own physician and may upon the proper showing to the Commission procure its permission at any time to have a physician of his own selection attend him, and in any nonsurgical case the employe with such permission in lien of medical aid, may procure any nonmedical treatment recognized by the laws of this State as legal, the practitioner administering such treatment to receive such fees therefor under the medical provisions of this Act as may be fixed by the Commission.

GENERAL PROVISIONS.

Section 82. At any time after six months have elapsed from the date of the injury, the Commission may in the exercise of its discretion, after five days prior notice to the parties, order payment of all or any part of the compensation awarded in a lump sum, or in such manner as it may determine to be for the best interests of the parties concerned, and its discretion so exercised shall be final and not subject to review. When payment in a lump sum is ordered the Commission shall fix the amount to be paid based on the present worth of partial payments considering interest at 4% per annum, and less deductions for the contingencies of death and remarriage.

The aggregate of all lump sums granted to a claimant who has been found and declared by the Commission to be permanently and totally disabled shall not exceed \$3125.00.

Section 83. The compensation provided for herein shall be reduced fifty per cent:

(a) Where injury is caused by the wilful failure of the employe to use safety devices provided by the employer.

(b) Where injury results from the employe's wilful failure to obey any reasonable rule adopted by the employer for the safety of the employe.

(c) Where injury results from the intoxication of the employe.

Section 84. No claim to recover compensation under this Act shall be maintained unless notice in writing in form as prescribed by the Commission, and making claim for compensation with respect to the injury and signed by the injured person or by

someone in his behalf or in case of death, by a dependent or some one in his behalf, shall be served upon the Commission either by delivering to, and leaving with it, a copy of such notice or by mailing to it by registered mail a copy thereof in a sealed and postpaid envelope addressed to its office in State Capitol Building, Denver, Colo., provided, however, that if no payment of compensation has been made, other than medical, funeral, surgical, nursing, dental and hospital services, crutches, apparatus and supplies, such notice or claim must be filed within one year from the date of the accident or if death result therefrom, within one year after such death, or the right to compensation therefor shall be wholly barred; and further, that any disability beginning more than five years from the date of the accident shall be conclusively presumed not to be due to such accident. The claim provided for in this Section may be filed by anyone, including the Commission or any of its agents, on behalf of such injured emplove or on behalf of dependents in case of his death, and shall be considered as having been filed by said injured person or in case of death by his dependents if subsequently ratified, such ratification to be in writing filed with the Commission within two years from the date of accident or from date of death if death results therefrom.

Section 85. The limitation of time provided for in this Act as against any person who is mentally incompetent or a minor dependent shall be eighteen months instead of one year.

Section 86. Claims for compensation or benefits due under this Act shall not be assigned, released or commuted except as provided in this Act, and shall be exempt from all claims of creditors and from levy, execution and attachment or other remedy or recovery or collection of a debt, which exemption may not be waived.

The power given in any power of attorney or other authority from any injured employe or the dependents of any killed employe, purporting to authorize any other person to receive, be paid or receipt for any compensation benefits awarded any such claimant shall be wholly void, illegal and of no force and effect.

Section 87. If an employe entitled to compensation under this Act be injured or killed by the negligence or wrong of another not in the same employ, such injured employe, or in case of death, his dependents, shall before filing any claim under this Act, elect in writing whether to take compensation under this Act or to pursue his remedy against such other. Such elections shall be evidenced in such manner as the Commission may by rule or regulation prescribe. If such injured employe, or in case of death, his dependents, elect to take compensation under this Act, the awarding of compensation shall operate as and be an assignment of the cause of action against such other to the Industrial Commission of Colorado if compensation be payable from the State Compensation Insurance Fund, and otherwise to the person, association, corporation, or insurance carrier liable for the payment of such compensation; however, said insurance carrier shall not be entitled to recover any sum in excess of the amount of compensation for which said carrier is liable under this Act to the injured employe, but to that extent said carrier shall be subrogated to the rights of the injured employe against said third party causing the injury; if the injured employe elects to proceed against such other, the State Compensation Insurance Fund, person, association, corporation or insurance carrier, as the case may be, shall contribute only the deficiency, if any, between the amount of the recovery against such other person actually collected, and the compensation provided by this Act in such case. Such a cause of action assigned to the Commission may be prosecuted or compromised by it. A compromise of any such cause of action by the employe or his dependents at an amount less than the compensation provided for by this Act shall be made only with the written approval of the Commission, if the deficiency of compensation would be payable from the State Compensation Insurance Fund, and otherwise with the written approval of the person, association, corporation, or insurance carrier, liable to pay the same. Whenever an employe is killed by the negligence or wrong of another not in the same employ and the dependents of such employe entitled to compensation under this Act are minors, such election to take compensation and the assignment of the cause of action against such other and such notice of election to pursue a remedy against such other shall be made by such minor, or shall be made on his behalf by a parent of such minor, or by his next friend or duly appointed guardian, as the Commission may determine by rule in each case.

Section 88. The right of compensation granted by this Act and any awards made thereunder shall have the same preference or lien without limit of amount against the assets of employer or insurer or both as is now or hereafter may be allowed by law for a claim for unpaid wages for labor.

Section 89. Any employer subject to the terms and provisions of this Act who fails to insure or to keep the insurance required by this Act in force or who allows the same to lapse or fails to effect a renewal thereof, shall not continue any of his business operations while such default in effective insurance continues. The Commission in its own name as party plaintiff may institute the proper action to enjoin any such employer from continuing his business operations during any such default.

Section 90. Unless previously authorized by the Commission, no lien shall be allowed nor any contract be enforceable for any attorney's fees, contingent or otherwise for services rendered for the enforcement or collection of any claim for compensation or other proceedings under the Workmen's Compensation Act, and then only as provided by rules of the Commission.

Section 91. The Commission may, in its discretion, at any time, any provisions in this Act to the contrary notwithstanding. by unanimous consent of all the members thereof, and with the approval of a majority of the State Auditing Board, compute and require to be paid to it to be held by it in trust, an amount equal to the present value of all unpaid compensation or other benefits in any case, computed at the rate of 4% per annum. Such action may be taken after a finding by the Commission as to the insolvency, threatened insolvency, or any other condition or danger which may cause the loss of, or which has delayed or may impede, hinder or delay prompt payment of compensation or benefits by any insurance carrier or employer. The action and finding of the Commission shall not be subject to review nor shall the Commission be required to give any notice of hearing or hold any hearing prior to taking such action or making its finding as aforesaid. The order of the Commission requiring said payment shall be valid, effective and in force from and after the approval thereof by the State Auditing Board.

All moneys so paid in shall constitute a separate trust fund, and after any such payment is so ordered the employer or insurance carrier shall thereupon be discharged from any further liability under such award, for which payment is made, to the extent of the payment made, and the payment of the award shall then be assumed to the extent of payment made by the special trust fund so created.

If, for any reason, a beneficiary's right to the compensation awarded and ordered paid into said special trust fund, ceases, lapses, or in any manner terminates by virtue of the terms and provisions of this Act so that a surplus not surviving or accruing to any other beneficiary, remains in said trust fund of the amount ordered paid into it on behalf of the beneficiary, the insurance carrier or employer who has made said payment shall be entitled to a refund of the present value of said surplus, if any, computed at the rate of four per cent per annum. Any portion of the special trust fund may, pursuant to resolution of the Commission, be invested in any securities of the State of Colorado or of the United States of America.

PROCEDURE.

Section 92. Any dispute or controversy concerning compensation under this Act shall be submitted to the Commission in the manner and with the effect as provided herein.

Section 93. If the insured employe or his dependents and the employer or his insurer reach an agreement in regard to compensation under this Act the agreement shall be filed with the Commission and after approval by it shall be enforceable as are all the awards of the Commission. All such agreements shall be subject to the approval of the Commission, shall be upon and in form as prescribed by it, and approval shall be given only when the terms thereof conform to the provisions of this Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission. Such approval of the Commission shall be evidenced by the signature of its Chairman thereon.

Section 94. Hearings upon claims arising under this Act shall be held by the Commission upon its own motion or upon the motion of any party interested therein. The Commission shall cause reasonable notice of such hearing, embracing a general statement of such claim to be given to each party interested, by service of such notice on him personally, or by mailing a copy thereof to him at his last known post office address, at least ten days before such hearing. Such hearings may be adjourned from time to time in the discretion of the Commission and may be held at such place or places as the Commission shall designate. Either party shall have the right to be present at any hearing in person or by attorney or by any other agent, and to present such testimony as may be pertinent to the controversy before the Commission and shall have the right of cross-examination; provided, however, that the Commission may with summary notice to either party cause testimony to be taken or an examination to be made of the person of the injured employe, or with or without notice an inspection of the premises where the injury occurred to be had. or the time books and payroll of the employer to be examined; the testimony so taken and the results of any such inspection or examination shall be reported to the Commission for its consideration upon final hearing and determination of the cause. All ex parte testimony taken by the Commission shall be reduced to writing and either party shall have an opportunity to examine and rebut the same on final hearing, by cross-examination or otherwise.

Section 95. All hearings arising under this Act may be held before the Commission or any two Commissioners or before any referee or referees appointed by the Commissioner. Such hearings may also be held by any Commissioner as referee when he has been especially appointed by the Commission to hold any such hearing.

Section 96. The Commission shall have the power and authority to appoint one or more referees to hold any of the hearings provided for in this Act. Such referee or referees shall have full power and authority to call, preside at, and conduct such hearings, as the said Commissioner would have. After the close of any such hearing the referee shall make his findings of fact as to the issues involved in said hearing and his determination and award, which said finding and award so made shall be taken as a part of the record in said cause, and shall be considered as the final finding and award of the Industrial Commission in said cause unless a review thereof is prayed for in the manner and within the time as herein provided.

Section 97. Any party in interest to any proceeding who is dissatisfied with the finding and award entered by any referee or referees of said Commission may petition the Industrial Commission as a Commission to review the finding and award of such referee or referees and the entire record in said cause, or the Commission on its own motion upon five days' notice to the parties may review any case, and the Commission in its discretion, may grant an oral hearing. Such petition shall be in writing and shall specify in detail the particular errors complained of in the finding and award and in the conduct and hearing of such cause. Such petition must be filed within ten days after the rendition of any finding or award by the referee unless further time is granted by the referee or the Commission within said ten days, and, unless so filed, the finding and award of the referee shall be considered as the final finding and award of the Commission in said cause. All parties in interest shall be given due notice of the rendition of any finding or award by the referee, and said period of ten days shall begin to run only after such notice, and the mailing of a copy of said finding or award addressed to the last known address of any party in interest shall be completed notice. Upon the filing of any such petition the Commission shall review the entire record of proceedings in said cause and in its discretion may take or order the taking of additional testimony and shall either affirm the finding and award of the referee or may enter a new finding and award, affirming or reversing the finding or award of the referee in whole or in part.

Section 98. No action, proceeding or suit to set aside, vacate or amend any finding, order or award of the Commission, or referee, or to enjoin the enforcement thereof, shall be brought unless the plaintiff shall have first applied to the Commission for a review as herein provided. Such action, proceeding or suit must be commenced within twenty days after the final finding, order or award entered by the Commission upon such review.

Section 99. Any person in interest being dissatisfied with any such finding, order or award of the Commission issued or promulgated by virtue of the authority conferred in this Act, may commence an action in the District Court in and for the county wherein the injury was sustained or in the District Court in and for the City and County of Denver against the Commission as defendant to modify or vacate the same on the grounds herein specified in which action any adverse party shall also be made a defendant.

Section 100. All such actions shall have precedence over any civil cause of a different nature pending in such Court, and the District Court shall always be deemed open for the trial thereof, and the same shall be tried and determined by the District Court in manner as provided for other civil actions.

Section 101. In such action, a copy of the complaint, which shall state the grounds upon which a review is sought, shall be served with the summons. The Commission shall file its answer within twenty days after the service of the complaint. With its answer, the Commission shall make return to said Court of all documents and papers on file in the matter, and of all testimony which may have been taken therein, and a certified copy of its order, finding and award. Such return of the Commission when filed in the office of the Clerk of the District Court shall constitute the judgment roll in such action; and it shall not be necessary to settle a bill of exceptions in order to make such return part of the record of such Court in such action. Such action may be thereupon brought on for hearing before said Court on such record by either party upon notice and in the manner as provided in said Court in other civil actions, subject, however, to the provisions of law for a change of place of trial or the calling in of another judge.

Section 102. If upon trial of such action it shall appear that all issues arising in such action have not theretofore been presented to the Commission in the petition filed as provided in this Act, or that the Commission has not theretofore had an ample opportunity to hear and determine any issues raised in such action, or has for any reason, not in fact heard and determined the issues raised, the Court shall, before proceeding to render judgment, unless the parties to such action stipulate to the contrary, transmit to the Commission a full statement of such issue or issues not adequately considered, and shall stay further proceedings in such action until such issues are heard by the Commission and returned to said Court.

Upon receipt of such statement, the Commission shall hear and consider the issues not theretofore heard and considered, and may alter, affirm, modify, amend or rescind its finding, order or award complained of in said action, and it shall report its action thereon to said Court within a reasonable time after its receipt of the statement from the Court.

The Court shall thereupon order such amendment or other proceeding as may be necessary to raise the issues as presented by such modification of the finding, order or award as may have been made by the Commission upon the hearing, if any such modification has in fact been made, and shall thereupon proceed with the trial of such action.

Section 103. Upon such hearing, the Court may affirm or set aside such order or award; but only upon the following grounds:

(a) That the Commission acted without or in excess of its powers;

(b) That the finding, order or award was procured by fraud;

(c) That the findings of fact by the Commission do not support the order or award.

Section 104. Any action commenced in court under this Section to set aside or modify any order or award of the Commission shall be brought to trial within thirty days after issue shall be joined, nuless continued on order of the Court for good cause shown. No continuance shall be for longer than thirty days at one time.

Section 105. Trial shall be to the Court without a jury and upon the record of the Commission returned to said Court. Upon the trial of any such action the Court shall disregard any irregularity or error of the Commission unless it be made affirmatively to appear that the party complaining was damaged thereby.

Section 106. The record in any case shall be transmitted to the Commission within twenty days after the order or judgment of the Court, unless, in the meantime, a writ of error addressed to the District Court shall be obtained from the Supreme Court, for the review of such order or judgment.

Section 107. Upon setting aside of any order or award, the Court may recommit the controversy and remand the record in the case to the Commission for further hearing or proceedings; or it may order said Commission to enter the proper award upon the findings, as the nature of the case shall demand; provided, however, that in no event shall such order for award be for a greater amount of compensation than allowed by this Act, or in any manner conflict with the provisions thereof.

Section 108. The Commission or any party who may consider himself aggrieved by a judgment entered upon the review of any such order or award, may have questions of law only reviewed summarily by the Supreme Court, by writ of error, as provided by law, and said cause shall be advanced npon the calendar of the Supreme Court, and a final decision rendered within sixty days from date of issuance of the writ. It shall not be necessary for said Commission or any party aggrieved by said action to execute, serve or file any undertaking in order to obtain such a writ of error.

Section 109. No fee shall be charged by the clerk of any court for the performance of any official service required by this Act. On proceedings to review any order, or award, costs as between the parties shall be allowed, or not in the discretion of the court, but no costs shall be taxed against said Commission. In any action for the review of any order or award, and upon any review thereof by the Supreme Court, it shall be the duty of the District Attorney of the county wherein said action is pending, or of the Attorney General, if requested by the Commission, to appear on behalf of the Commission, whether any other party defendant should have appeared or be represented in the action or not.

Section 110. Upon its own motion on the ground of error, mistake or a change in conditions, the Commission may at any time after notice of hearing to the parties interested, review any award and on such review, may make an award ending, diminishing, maintaining or increasing the compensation previously awarded, subject to the maximum and minimums provided in this Act and shall state its conclusions of fact and rulings of law, and shall immediately send to the parties a copy of the award. No such review shall affect such award as regards any moneys already paid.

Section 111. The Commission, or any agent, deputy or referee designated by it shall have power and authority to issue subpoenas, to compel the attendance of witnesses or parties, and the production of books, papers or records and to administer oaths. Any person who serves a subpoena shall receive the same fee as the sheriff. Each witness who is subpoenaed on behalf of the Commission, and who appears in obedience thereto shall receive for his attendance the fees and mileage provided for witnesses in civil cases in the District Court, which shall be audited and paid from the State Treasury in the same manner as other expenses are audited and paid, upon the presentation of proper voucher approved by the Commission.

The Commission may, in its discretion, assess the cost of attendance and mileage of witnesses subpoenaed by either party to any proceeding, against the other party to such proceeding, when in its judgment, the necessity of subpoenaing such witness arises out of the raising of any incompetent, irrelevant or sham issues by such other party.

Section 112. Any person who shall wilfully fail or neglect to appear and testify or to produce books, papers or records, as required by such subpoena duly served upon him, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined not less than twenty-five dollars nor more than one hundred dollars, or imprisoned in the county jail not longer than thirty days for each such offense or both such fine and imprisonment. Each day such person shall so refuse or neglect shall constitute a separate offense.

Section 113. The District Court of the county wherein such person resides, or District Court of the City and County of Denver, upon application of the Commission or its agent, shall issue an order compelling the attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of books, papers or records before such Commission or any such agent. Section 114. The Commission or any party may, in any investigation or hearing, cause the depositions of witnesses residing within or without the State to be taken in the manner prescribed by law for like depositions in civil actions in district courts. All such depositions shall be taken upon commission issued by the Commission and shall be taken in accordance with the laws and rules of court covering depositions in civil cases in the District Courts of this State.

Section 115. A full and complete record shall be kept of all proceedings had before the Commission on any hearing and all testimony shall be taken down and transcribed by a stenographer appointed by the Commission.

Section 116. A transcribed copy of the evidence and proceedings, or any specific part thereof, of any investigation or hearing taken by a stenographer appointed by the Commission. being certified by such stenographer to be a true and correct transcript of the testimony on the investigation or hearing of a particular witness, or of a specific part thereof, carefully compared by him with his original notes, and to be a correct statement of the evidence and proceedings had on such investigation or hearing so purporting to be taken and subscribed, may be received as evidence by the Commission and by any court with the same effect as if such stenographer were present and testified to the facts so certified. A copy of such transcript shall be furnished on demand to any party upon the payment of ten cents per folio. Fees received from the sale of transcripts shall be applicable to the expenses of the Commission in addition to all sums which may be appropriated for its use.

Section 117. If any employer or insurer, or any officer or agent or either, or any employe, or any other person shall violate any provision of this Act, or shall do any act prohibited thereby, or shall fail or refuse to perform any duty lawfully enjoined, within the time prescribed by the Commission, for which no penalty has been specifically provided, or shall fail, neglect, or refuse to obey any lawful order made by the Commission, or any judgment or decree made by any court as provided by this Act, for each such violation, failnre or refusal, such employer or insurer, or any officer or agent or either, or any employe or any person shall be punished by a penalty of not more than one hundred dollars for each such offense.

Section 118. Every day during which any employer or insurer or officer or agent of either or any employe, or any other person shall fail to comply with any lawful order of the Commission or shall fail to perform any duty imposed by this Act, shall constitute a separate and distinct violation thereof; provided, however, that in any action which may be brought to enforce the same, or to enforce any penalty provided for in this Act, such violations shall be considered cumulative, and may be joined in such action.

Section 119. All penalties provided for in this Act, except fines in cases of misdemeanor, shall be collected in a civil action brought against the employer, or insurer or any officer or agent of either, or any employe or any other person as the case may be, in the name of and by the Commission, and all such penalties, when collected, shall be applicable to the expense of the Commission, in addition to all sums which may be appropriated for its use.

Section 120. Upon the request of the Commission, the Attorney General or the District Attorney of any district, or any attorney at law in the regular employ of the Commission, shall institute and prosecute the necessary actions or proceedings for the enforcement of any of the provisions of this Act or award or order of the Commission or for the recovery of any money due the State Compensation Insurance Fund, or any penalty herein provided and shall defend in like manner all suits, actions or proceedings brought against the Commission or any member thereof an his official capacity.

Section 121. If, for the purpose of obtaining any order, benefit, award or compensation or payment under the provisions of this Act, either for himself or for any other person, anyone wilfully makes under oath a false statement or representation, he shall be guilty of perjury and punished accordingly, and he shall forfeit all right to compensation under this Act upon conviction of such offense.

STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND.

Section 122. There is hereby established a fund, to be known as the State Compensation Insurance Fund, for the benefit of injured and the dependents of killed employes, which shall be administered in accordance with the following provisions, without liability on the part of the State, beyond the amount of said Fund, constituted as provided in this Act.

Section 123. The Commission is hereby vested with full power, authority and jurisdiction over the State Compensation Insurance Fund and may do and perform any and all things, whether herein specifically designated or in addition thereto, which are necessary or convenient in the exercise of any power, authority or jurisdiction over said Fund in the administration thereof under the provisions of this Act, as fully and completely as the governing body of a private insurance company might or could do, subject however, to all the provisions of this Act.

Section 124. The Commission shall have full power and authority and it shall be its duty, to fix and determine the rates to be charged by the State Compensation Insurance Fund for compensation insurance, and to manage and conduct all business and affairs in relation thereto, all of which business and affairs shall be conducted in the name of the Commission, and in that name, without any other name or title, the Commission may:

(a) Sue and be sued in all the courts of the State and in actions arising out of any act, deed, matter or thing made, omitted, entered into, done or suffered in connection with the State Compensation Insurance Fund, the administration, management or conduct of the business or affairs relating thereto.

(b) Make and enter into contracts of insurance with employers as herein provided, and such other contracts or obligations relating to the State Compensation Insurance Fund as are authorized or permitted under the provisions of this Act, but the Commission shall not, nor shall any officer or employe thereof be personally liable in his private capacity for or on account of any act done or omitted or contract or other obligation entered into or undertaken in an official capacity, in good faith and without intent to defraud in connection with the administration, management or conduct of the State Compensation Insurance Fund, its business or other affairs relating thereto.

(c) Contract with physicians, surgeons and hospitals for medical and surgical treatment, services and supplies, crutches and apparatus, and the care and nursing of injured persons entitled to benefits from said Fund, and may contract for medical, surgical, hospital and nursing services and supplies in excess of the amount and period otherwise limited herein, whenever said Commission may determine that the contracting of such extra medical, surgical, hospital and nursing services and supplies might tend to reduce the period of disability for which said Fund would be liable for the payment and compensation.

Section 125. The State Compensation Insurance Fund shall be a continuing fund and shall consist of all premiums received and paid into said Fund for compensation insurance, all property and securities acquired by and through the use of moneys belonging to said Fund and all interest earned upon moneys belonging to said Fund and deposited or invested as herein provided. Said Fund shall be applicable to the payment of losses sustained on account of compensation and benefit insurance in accordance with the provisions of this Act.

Section 126. The Commission shall from time to time classify the places of employment of employers insured in the State Compensation Insurance Fund into classes in accordance with the nature of the business in which they are engaged and the probable hazard of risk of injury to their employes. It shall determine the amount of the premiums which such employers shall pay to said State Compensation Insurance Fund, and may prescribe in what manner such premiums shall be paid, and may change the amount thereof both in respect to any or all of such employers from time to time, as circumstances may require, and the condition of their respective plants, establishments or places of work in respect to the safety of their employes may justify, but all such premiums shall be levied on a basis that shall be fair, equitable and just as among such employers.

Section 127. It shall also be its duty to divide each of such classes under said classification into as many subclasses as may be necessary, upon such terms and conditions as will enable it to determine the risks and fix the rates of premium of the different employers in the same class of employment, with respect to the conditions of said places of employment as regards the several requirements upon which the rates of premium of risks are based and determined, as provided in this Act.

Section 128. It shall be the duty of the Commission in the exercise of the powers and discretion conferred upon it by this Act, ultimately to fix and maintain for each class and subclass of occupation, the lowest possible rates of premium consistent with the maintenance of a solvent State Compensation Insurance Fund, and the creation and maintenance of a reasonable surplus after the payment of legitimate claims for injury and death, that may be authorized to be paid from the State Compensation Insurance Fund for the benfit of injured and dependents of killed employes.

Section 129. Such rates shall take no account of the extent to which the employes in any particular establishment have or have not persons dependent upon them for support; nor of whether such employes have dependents who are non-residents of the United States; nor of whether such employes are married or single; nor the age of any such employes. The rates so made shall be that percentage of the payroll of any employer, which, on the average, shall produce a sufficient sum—

(a) To carry all claims to maturity; that is to say, the rates shall be based upon the "reserve" and not upon the "assessment" plan;

(b) To produce a reasonable surplus as provided in this Act and, to cover the catastrophe hazard, and to insure the payment to employes and their dependents of the compensation herein provided.

(c) In determining the amount of reserve to be laid aside to meet deferred payments according to awards, such reserve shall be ascertained by finding the present worth of such deferred payments calculated at a rate of interest not higher than four per cent per annum and such calculations shall be made according to a table of mortality not lower than the American Experience Table of Mortality and, in the discretion of the Commission, by such other and further methods as will result in the establishment of adequate reserves.

Section 130. The Commission shall keep an accurate account of the money paid in premiums by each of the several classes and subclasses of occupations or industries, and the disbursements on account of injuries and death of employes thereof; and it shall also keep an account of the money received from each individual employer and the amount disbursed from the State Compensation Insurance Fund on account of injuries and death of the employes of such employer; provided, that the State Compensation Insurance Fund, including such portions of said Fund as may be derived from premiums paid by the State, and its political sub-divisions, shall be one fund, indivisible.

It is the intention that the amounts raised for such State Compensation Insurance Fund shall ultimately become neither more nor less than to make said Fund self-supporting, and the premiums or rates levied for such purpose shall be subject to readjustment from time to time by the Commission, as may become necessary.

Section 131. The Commission shall set aside such proportion as it may deem necessary, of the earned premiums paid into the State Compensation Insurance Fund, as a contribution to the surplus of the Fund; provided that until the surplus of the Fund shall amount to the sum of Five Hundred Thousand (\$500,-000) Dollars, at least ten per cent of the earned premiums paid into the State Compensation Insurance Fund shall be so set aside.

Section 132. The Commission may, in its discretion, amend at any time the rate or rates for any class or classes, subclass or subclasses; provided further, that no contract of insurance between the State Compensation Insurance Fund and any employer shall be in effect until a policy or binder has been actually issued by the Commission and the premium therefor paid as and when required by this Act and provided further, that after the inspection of the premises of any employer, or after considering the experience of such employer, the Commission may quote with respect to his risk a rate higher or lower than that indicated by its manual as applicable to his risk. Twice a year the Commission shall tabulate the earned premiums paid by policy holders of the State Compensation Insurance Fund, by classes and subclasses, and shall also tabulate the losses incurred by the Fund by classes and subclasses. Should the experience of the Fund show a balance to the credit of the policy holders of any class or subclass after the above mentioned amounts have been credited to the snrplus fund, and after payment of all amounts which

have fallen due because of injury or death and after setting aside proper reserves, then the Commission shall distribute such credit balance to the policy holders of such classes as have a balance to their credit in proportion to the premium paid by each such policy holder during the preceding insurance period and in proportion to the credit balance earned by the class or subclass as a credit upon the premium or premiums next due from him provided, however, that in the event any such policy holder fails to renew his policy in the State Compensation Insurance Fund for the six-months period following the period in which said dividends were earned, he shall not be entitled to said credit dividend, and provided further, that in the event an employer actually discontinues business, his policy shall be canceled and the dividend if any, when ascertained, returned to him.

Section 133. If any employer shall be in arrears for more than twenty days in any payment required to be made by him to the State Compensation Insurance Fund as provided in this Act, he shall by virtue of such arrearage be in default of such payment and any policy issued to him by said Fund shall thereupon be canceled without notice as of the effective or renewal date of said policy. In the event cancelation of policy is made as herein provided and the State Compensation Insurance Fund is required to make any expenditures for the benefits provided by this Act for any accident causing injury or death within said twenty-day period, said Fund shall be entitled to reimbursement from the employer for all amounts so paid which may be collected by said Fund in a civil action brought against the employer, provided however, that the employer shall be primarily liable to any injured employe or the dependents of a killed employe for the payment of the compensation and benefits provided by this Act during said twenty-day period.

Section 134. In the event the amount of premium collected by the Fund from any employer at the beginning of any period of six months as ascertained and calculated by using the estimated expenditure of wages for the period of time covered by such premium payments as a basis, shall differ from the earned premium based upon the actual wage expenditure for such six months period, an adjustment of the amount of such premium shall be made at the end of such six months period and the actual amount of such premium shall be determined in accordance with the amount of actual expenditure of wages for such period; and, in the event such actual wage expenditure for such period is less than the amount on which such estimated premium was collected, then such employer shall be entitled to have the amount of the difference in premium' repaid to him or credited on succeeding premium payments, and should the earned premium, where ascertained as aforesaid, exceed in amount the premium so paid by such employer at the beginning of each such six months period, such employer shall upon being advised of the

true amount of such premium due, forthwith pay to said State Compensation Insurance Fund an amount equal to the difference between the amount actually found to be due and the amount so paid by him at the beginning of said six months period.

Section 135. Every employer insured in the State Compensation Insurance Fund shall semi-annually, on the first day of January and July of each year pay into the State Compensation Insurance Fund in advance the amount of premium determined and fixed by the Commission for the ensning period. The amount of the premium to be paid by every such employer at the rates fixed and established by the Commission for said State Compensation Iusurance Fund shall be on the basis of the annual expenditure of money by said employer for the services of persons engaged in his employment. The amount of premium to be so paid by each such employer shall be determined by the classifications, rules and rates made and published by the Commission. Payment shall be made within the time fixed by this Act and a receipt or certificate certifying that such payment has been made shall be mailed to such employer by the Commission which receipt or certificate shall be prima facie evidence of the payment of such premium.

Section 136. The amount of money to be contributed by the State itself, and by each county, city, town, irrigation or school district, or other taxing district of the State, shall be determined and fixed by said Industrial Commission by any of the methods herein provided for the determination of premiums and rates for private employers, provided however, that the Commission shall make such readjustment of premiums heretofore paid in by public employers and of premiums now due from public employers under the prior Statute, after the same are actually paid in, as it may deem equitable and just.

Section 137. The officials of the State, county, city, town, irrigation or school district or other taxing district of the State, who are charged by law with the duties of raising and appropriating funds of each such subdivision for the payment of expenditures authorized on behalf of each such subdivision shall cause to be raised and appropriated sufficient moneys for the payment of any sum of money required to purchase compensation insurance from said Fund for any such subdivision and the officials who are charged with the duty of issuance and payment of the warrants of each such subdivision, shall pay same when due, provided however, the Commission shall communicate to the General Assembly within the first ten days of each regular session thereof, an estimate of the aggregate amount of money necessary to be contributed by the State during the two years next ensuing as its proper payments due to said Fund.

Section 138. All officials of the State, county, city, town, irrigation or school district or other taxing district of the State

who are charged by law with the duty of keeping or preparing any or all of the books or records of any such subdivision shall upon request furnish to the Industrial Commission of Colorado such information as may be required by the Commission relative to the expenditure of money by any such subdivision for the services of any and all persons in its employ.

It shall be the duty of the Public Examiner of the State of Colorado to audit and examine, at least once a year, all of the books, records and other documents of every public employer as hereinabove set forth as far as they relate to the wage expenditure or payroll of any and all such public employers during the year preceding said examination or audit and said Public Examiner shall furnish to the Commission in form as prescribed by it a verified statement of the total wage expenditure of each and all such subdivisions for the period covered by said examination and audit.

Section 139. The Commission may secure reinsurance covering the catastrophe hazard with resepect to any risk or risks carried by the State Compensation Insurance Fund, and the State Treasurer shall pay the premium for such reinsurance from the State Compensation Insurance Fund in the manner provided by this Act for other disbursements from said Fund.

Section 140. The State Treasurer shall be the custodian of the State Compensation Insurance Fund and all disbursements therefrom shall be paid by him upon warrants of the State Auditor upon vouchers issued by the Commission and the State Auditor is hereby anthorized and directed to draw warrants upon the State Compensation Insurance Fund for payment thereof, npon order of the Commission.

Section 141. The Commission shall in writing authorize and direct the State Treasnrer to invest any portion of the State Compensation Insurance Fund which in the jndgment of the Commission is not needed for immediate use. Said Fund, including its surplus and reserves or any portion thereof, may be invested in any warrants or bonds of the State of Colorado or of the United States of America at market price, as may be determined by the Commission. All interest earned upon such portion or portions of the Fund as may be deposited or invested shall be collected by the State Treasurer and placed to the credit of such Fund, provided however, that none of the funds belonging to the State Compensation Insurance Fund shall be used for any other purpose whatsoever save those of said Fund. Upon the direction of the Commission, with the approval of the State Auditing Board, the State Treasurer shall sell or dispose of such portion of the investments of said Fund at market price, as he may be directed.

Section 142. The State Treasurer shall give a separate and additional bond in such amount as may be fixed by the Commission, with sureties to be approved by the Governor, conditioned for the faithful performance of his duties as custodian of the State Compensation Insurance Fund and as custodian of all the bonds, warrants, investments and moneys of, or belonging to said Fund, subject to all provision of law governing bonds of the State Treasurer, and the premium on said bond shall be paid from the State Treasury upon warrant issued by the State Auditor upon voucher approved by the Commission.

Section 143. The State Compensation Insurance Fund shall be open to visitation by the Insurance Commissioner at all reasonable times, and the Insurance Commissioner may require from the Commissiou reports as to the condition of such Fund, as required by law to be made by other insurance carriers doing business in this State, so far as applicable to said Fund. A thorough examination of said Fund shall be made whenever the Industrial Commission and the Insurance Commissioner deem it necessary, but not less often than once in every two years. Such examination shall be made by a competent, fair and impartial examiner, selected by agreement of the Insurance Commissioner and the Commission, and it shall be an Actuary of recognized standing and free from any connection with any interest opposed to the State Compensation Insurance Fund.

Section 144. Any employer who intentionally misrepresents to the Commission the amount of payroll or wage expenditure upon which any premium under this Act is based, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$500.00 or jail sentence of not more than thirty days, or both such fine and imprisonment.

Section 145. The Commission shall prepare and furnish to employers at the expense of the State all such blanks as may be necessary to carry out the terms and provisions of this Act in connection with the operation and maintenance of the State Compensation Insurance Fund.

Section 146. The Commission shall cause to be prepared proper schedules showing its classification, rates and regulations which shall be effective at such time or times as may be ordered by the Commission, said classifications, rates and regulations shall be published by posting a copy thereof on the bulletin board in the offices of said Commission.

RATIFICATION OF PRIOR ACTS AND PROCEEDINGS AND CONTINUANCE OF JURISDICTION.

Section 147. The manner, mode and method of proceeding of the Industrial Commission of Colorado in the hearing and disposition of claims, contested and non-contested, arising under Chapter 179 of the Session Laws of Colorado of 1915, and the Amendments thereto of 1917, is hereby ratified, confirmed and validated.

Section 148. Nothing contained in this Act shall be construed to limit, interfere with, disturb or render ineffective in any degree, any matter, proceeding or transaction pending before, or done or performed under the provisions of Chapter 179 of the Session Laws of 1915 and all Acts amendatory thereof, by the Industrial Commission of Colorado or any department thereof including the State Compensation Insurance Fund, or to effect any right accrued or accruing or to accrue under said Acts, but each and every part thereof are hereby expressly saved and continued under the jurisdiction of said Industrial Commission of Colorado with full power, authority and jurisdiction and with the right and duty in said Commission to dispose of the same.

PROCEDURAL PROVISIONS RETRO-ACTIVE.

Section 149. The compensation provisions of this Act, except the procedural provisions, shall not apply to any injury sustained prior to the taking effect hereof.

DECLARATION OF LEGISLATIVE INTENTION.

Section 150. If any part, section, sub-section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Act, is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Act. The General Assembly hereby declare that it would have passed this Act and each part, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase irrespective of the fact that anyone or more other parts, section, sub-section, sentence, clause or phrase be declared unconstitutional.

REPEALING CLAUSE.

Section 151. Chapter 179 of the Session Laws of 1915 and Chapter 155 of the Session Laws of 1917 and all Acts or parts of Acts inconsistent with this Act are hereby repealed.

EMERGENCY CLAUSES.

Section 152. It is hereby declared that this Act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety.

Section 153. In the opinion of the General Assembly an emergency exists; therefore, this Act shall take effect and be in force on and after May 1st, 1919.

Approved April 10, 1919.

Index to Workmen's Compensation Act

Effective May 1, 1919.

	Section	Page
ACCEPTANCE OF ACT (See also, Election-Rejection)		
Effect of	13-19	14, 16
Employes	10	10
When deemed made	18	16
Employers		
Conclusively presumed, when	16	15
How made	17	15
Withdrawal, how made	17	15
Notice of, posted	20	16
Who bound by	19	16
ACCIDENTS (See Accident Benefits, Compensation, De- pendency and Death Benefits)		
Essentials of recovery	15	14
·	10	1.
Third Party causing		
Right of injured employee to elect	87	37
ACCIDENT BENEFITS (See Dependency, Death Benefits)		
Compensation		
Assignment of, prohibited	86	37
Attachment, exempt from	86	37
Claim for		
Commission may file for claimant, when	84	36
Form of	84	36
Limitation of time for filing, generally	84	36
Mentally incompetent—18 months	85	37
Minor children—18 months	85	37
Minor children, widow may make	68	29
Power of Attorney to collect or receipt for, void	86	37
Service of, prescribed	84	36
Who may file	84	36
Execution, exempt from	86	37
Exempt from creditors	86	37
Lien of, against assets of employer or insurer	88	38
Disfigurement of head or face	75	33
Limit of \$500	75	33
Earnings		
Board and lodging, included in computation	47-a	23
Items included	47-a	23
Wages, defined	47-a	23

Earnings—Continued— Weekly47-b23 23 Exceptional cases47-c23 23 Minors47-d23 23 Minors47-d23 23 47-d23 23 47-d23 23 47-d23 23 47-d23 23 47-d23 23 45 24Examination of Employe by physician Employe submit to, when Second 10 operation of business.81 85 85 85 85 86 87 8135 81 <b< th=""><th>ACCIDENT BENEFITS-Continued-</th><th>Section</th><th>Page</th></b<>	ACCIDENT BENEFITS-Continued-	Section	Page
Weekly 47-b 23 How computed		Dection	1 abo
How computed47-b23Exceptional cases47-c23Minors47-cd23Previous injury disregarded4824Examination of Employe by physician8135Employe submit to, when8135Physician must testify as to, when8135Failure to insure2718Commission enjoin operation of business8938Employe claim compensation from employer2718Penalty for8935Special operating fee for8035Strangulation when not compensated8035Lump Sums8236Deductions for8236Permanent total disability8236Procedure8236 </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
Exceptional cases 47-c 23 Minors 47-d 23 Previous injury disregarded 48 24 Examination of Employe by physician 81 35 Penalty for failure. 81 35 Penalty for failure. 81 35 Privician must testify as to, when 81 35 Failure to insure 89 38 Commission enjoin operation of business. 89 38 Compensation increased 50 per cent. 27 18 Penalty for 80 35 Special operating fee for. 80 35 Strangulation when not compensated. 80 35 Lump Sums 82 36 Allowed when 82 36 Discretion of Commission fnal. 82 36 Procedure 82 36 Remariage 82 36 Husband or wife without children 55 26 Medical, Surgical, Hospital 35 35 Amount of, employer must furnish. 51 25 Perison and surgeon, who may select		47-b	23
Minors47-d23Previous injury disregarded4824Examination of Employe by physician8135Employe submit to, when8135Penalty for failure8135Priscian must testify as to, when8135Failure to insure2718Commission enjoin operation of business8938Employe claim compensation from employer2718Compensation increased 50 per cent2718Compensation increased 50 per cent8035Essentials of proof8035Strangulation when not compensated8035Lump Sums418236Deductions for8236Descretion of Commission final8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8335Pasis of5526Basis of5125Pres for, schedule of, commission establish5125P			
Examination of Employe by physician8135Employe submit to, when8135Penalty for failure.8135Failure to insure8135Commission enjoin operation of business.8938Employe claim compensation from employer.2718Compensation increased 50 per cent.2718Compensation increased 50 per cent.2718Penalty for8035Essentials of proof.8035Special operating fee for8035Strangulation when not compensated.8035Lump Sums418236Discretion of Commission fnal.8236Percedure8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Remarriage33Husband or wife without children5526Basis of5526Medical, Surgical, Hospital5125Amount of, employer must furnish.5125Peres for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Prose for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Prose for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Pres for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Prose for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Prose for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Prose for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Premanent partial disability78 <td>-</td> <td></td> <td>_</td>	-		_
Employe submit to, when	Previous injury disregarded	48	24
Employe submit to, when	Examination of Employe by physician		
Penalty for failure		81	35
Failure to insureS938Commission enjoin operation of business.S938Employe claim compensation from employer.2718Compensation increased 50 per cent.2718Penalty for8035Strangulation when not compensated.8035Strangulation when not compensated.8035Lump Sums8182Allowed when8236Discretion of Commission final.8236Permanent total disability8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Procedure5526Basis of5526Basis of5526Basis of5526Medical, Surgical, Hospital1Anount of, employer must furnish.5125Pres for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Prose for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Discretion of and surgeon, who may select.8135Who authorized under Act.8135Who authorized under Act.8135Pains for, employer may operate under, when5125Commission approve and regulate.5125Commission approve and regulate.5125Deratlysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent total disability7434How determined7433Paid at least once a month.7030D			
Commission enjoin operation of business. $\$9$ $\$8$ Employe claim compensation from employer. 27 18 Compensation increased 50 per cent. 27 18 Penalty for . $\$9$ $\$8$ Hernia $\$0$ $\$5$ Essentials of proof $\$0$ $\$5$ Special operating fee for. $\$0$ $\$5$ Strangulation when not compensated. $\$0$ $\$5$ Discretion of commission final. $\$2$ $\$6$ Discretion of Commission final. $\$2$ 36 Discretion of Commission final. $\$2$ 36 Permanent total disability x x Aggregate of Lump Sums, how limited. $\$2$ 36 Procedure $\$2$ 36 Remarriage $=$ 125 Medical, Surgical, Hospital 51 25 Pres for, schedule of, commission establish. 51 25 Pres for, schedule of, commission establish. 51 25 Physician and surgeon, who may select. $\$1$ 35 Physician and surgeon, who may select. $\$1$ 35 Phans for, employer may operate under, when. 51 25 Commission approve and regulate. 51 25 Teeth, injury to, how compensated. 74 38 Paid at least once a month. 76 36 Paid sof member equivalent to loss. 73 -b 32 Permanent total disability 77 34 How determined 77 34 How determined 77 34 <td>Physician must testify as to, when</td> <td>81</td> <td>35</td>	Physician must testify as to, when	81	35
Employe claim compensation from employer.2718Compensation increased 50 per cent.2718Penalty for8938Hernia8035Essentials of proof8035Special operating fee for8035Strangulation when not compensated.8035Lump Sums8236Allowed when8236Deductions for8236Deductions for8236Deductions for8236Permanent total disability8236Procedure8236Procedure8236Remarriage5526Medical, Surgical, Hospital5125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish5125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish5125Perso for, schedule of, commission establish5125Perso for, schedule of, commission establish5125Piscian and surgeon, who may select8135Plans for, employer may operate under, when5125Commission approve and regulate5125Teeth, injury to, how compensated7433Paid teast once a month7834How determined7834How determined7834How determined7734Permanent total disability7734Permanent of disability7734Permanent of disability773	Failure to insure		
Compensation increased 50 per cent.2718Penalty for8938Hernia8035Essentials of proof8035Strangulation when not compensated8035Lump Sums818236Allowed when8236Discretion of Commission final.8236Permanent total disability8236Permanent total disability8236Remarriage8236Husband or wife without children5526Medical, Surgical, Hospital5125Amount of, employer must furnish5125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish5125Physician and surgeon, who may select8135Who authorized under Act8135Paralysis of member equivalent to loss73-b32Permanent partial disability7834Hernia, 'Special operation, amount of7834We determined7834We determined7834Hernia, 'Special operation, amount of7834We determined7734Plans for, employer may operate under, when7334Permanent partial disability7734Permanent ot al disability7734Permanent ot al disability7734Hysician or Surgeon7134Physician or Surgeon7335Pose down or surgeon7435P	Commission enjoin operation of business	89	38
Penalty for 89 38 Hernia 80 35 Essentials of proof 80 35 Special operating fee for 80 35 Strangulation when not compensated 80 35 Lump Sums 81 36 Allowed when 82 36 Deductions for 82 36 Discretion of Commission final. 82 36 Permanent total disability 82 36 Aggregate of Lump Sums, how limited. 82 36 Procedure 82 36 Remarriage 83 84 Husband or wife without children 55 26 Basis of 55 26 Medical, Surgical, Hospital 125 125 Amount of, employer must furnish. 51 25 Peers for, schedule of, commission establish 51 25 Hernia, 'Special operating fee for. 80 35 Physician and surgeon, who may select. 81 35 Who authorized under Act. 81 35 Paid at least once a month.	Employe claim compensation from employer	27	18
Hernia 80 35 Essentials of proof 80 35 Special operating fee for 80 35 Strangulation when not compensated 80 35 Lump Sums 82 36 Allowed when 82 36 Deductions for 82 36 Discretion of Commission final. 82 36 Permanent total disability 82 36 Procedure 82 36 Procedure 82 36 Remarriage 1 42 36 Medical, Surgical, Hospital 51 25 26 Medical, Surgical, Hospital 51 25 25 Meedial or wife without children 51 25 125 Hernia, 'Special operating fee for 80 35 Physician and surgeon, who may select 81 35 Plans for, employer may operate under, when 51 25 Commission approve and regulate 51 25 Commission approve and regulate 74 33 Paid at least once a month 70 <			18
Essentials of proof 80 35 Special operating fee for 80 35 Strangulation when not compensated. 80 35 Lump Sums 81 82 36 Allowed when 82 36 Deductions for 82 36 Discretion of Commission final. 82 36 Permanent total disability 82 36 Procedure 82 36 Remarriage 82 36 Medical, Surgical, Hospital 51 25 Medical, Surgical, Hospital 51 25 Fees for, schedule of, commission establish. 51 25 Fees for, schedule of, commission establish. 51 25 Fees for, schedule of, commission establish. 51 25 Physician and surgeon, who may select. 81 35 Physician and surgeon, who may select. 81 35 Plans for, employer may operate under, when 51 25 Commission approve and regulate. 51 25 Commission approve and regulate. 51 25 Commission on appr			
Special operating fee for			
Strangulation when not compensated.S035Lump SumsAllowed when8236Deductions for8236Discretion of Commission final.8236Permanent total disability8236Aggregate of Lump Sums, how limited.8236Procedure8236Remarriage8236Husband or wife without children.5526Basis of5526Medical, Surgical, Hospital5125Amount of, employer must furnish.5125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Physician and surgeon, who may select.8135Physician and surgeon, who may select.8135Plans for, employer may operate under, when5125Commission approve and regulate.5125Teeth, injury to, how compensated.7433Paid at least once a month.7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834United to \$2,6007834Weakly compensation, amount of.7834How regulated7734Permanent total disability7734How regulated7734How regulated7734How regulated7734How regulated7734How regulated7734How regu			
Lump SumsAllowed when\$235Deductions for\$236Discretion of Commission final.\$236Discretion of Commission final.\$236Permanent total disability\$236Aggregate of Lump Sums, how limited.\$236Procedure\$236Remarriage\$236Medical, Surgical, Hospital\$1\$5Amount of, employer must furnish.\$125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish.\$125Physician and surgeon, who may select.\$135Plans for, employer may operate under, when\$135Plans for, employer and regulate.\$135Plans for, employer and regulate.\$135Platest once a month.7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent total disability7834How determined7734What constitutes prima facie.7734How regulated7734How regulated7734Physician or Surgeon\$135Employer or Surgeon\$135Physician or Surgeon\$135Physici			
Allowed when\$235Deductions for\$236Discretion of Commission final.\$236Discretion of Commission final.\$236Permanent total disability\$236Aggregate of Lump Sums, how limited.\$236Procedure\$236Remarriage\$236Medical, Surgical, Hospital\$526Medical, Surgical, Hospital\$125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish.\$125Physician and surgeon, who may select.\$135Plans for, employer may operate under, when\$135Vho authorized under Act.\$135Paid at least once a month.7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent total disability7834How determined7734Weakly compensation, amount of.7834How regulated7734Puid for life7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135		00	00
Deductions for	-		
Discretion of Commission final			
Permanent total disabilityAggregate of Lump Sums, how limited			
Aggregate of Lump Sums, how limited.8236Procedure8236Remarriage1Husband or wife without children.5526Basis of5526Medical, Surgical, Hospital5125Amount of, employer must furnish.5125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Physician and surgeon, who may select.8135Who authorized under Act.8135Vho authorized under Act.8135Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834Wheekly compensation, amount of.7834Permanent total disability7734Pold for life7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135		02	00
Procedure8236RemarriageHusband or wife without children5526Basis of5526Medical, Surgical, HospitalAmount of, employer must furnish5125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish5125Hernia, 'Special operating fee for8035Physician and surgeon, who may select8135Who authorized under Act8135Vho authorized under Act8135Paid at least once a month7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss73-b32Permanent total disability7834How determined7834Paid for life7734Point for life7734Point of life7734Postitutes prima facie7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135	-		
RemarriageHusband or wife without children			
Husband or wife without children.5526Basis of	Procedure	82	36
Basis of	Remarriage		
Medical, Surgical, HospitalAmount of, employer must furnish.5125Employer must insure, except when.5125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Hernia.' Special operating fee for.8035Physician and surgeon, who may select.8135Employe may select, when.8135Who authorized under Act.8135Plans for, employer may operate under, when.5125Teeth, injury to, how compensated.7433Paid at least once a month.7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834Limited to \$2,6007834Permanent total disability7734Paid for life7734How regulated7734How regulated7734Permination of7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie7734What constitutes prima facie7734Stop onEmploye may select, when.8135Who authorized8135			
Amount of, employer must furnish.5125Employer must insure, except when.5125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Hernia,' Special operating fee for.8035Physician and surgeon, who may select.8135Employe may select, when.8135Who authorized under Act.8135Plans for, employer may operate under, when.5125Commission approve and regulate.5125Teeth, injury to, how compensated.7433Paid at least once a month.7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834Weekly compensation, amount of.7834Paid for life7734Permanent total disability7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Who authorized8135	Basis of	55	26
Employer must insure, except when.5125Fees for, schedule of, commission establish.5125Hernia,' Special operating fee for.8035Physician and surgeon, who may select.8135Employe may select, when.8135Who authorized under Act.8135Plans for, employer may operate under, when.5125Commission approve and regulate.5125Teeth, injury to, how compensated.7433Paid at least once a month.7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834Weekly compensation, amount of.7834Paid for life7734Permanent total disability7734How regulated7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135	Medical, Surgical, Hospital		
Fees for, schedule of, commission establish		51	25
Hernia,' Special operating fee for.8035Physician and surgeon, who may select.8135Employe may select, when.8135Who authorized under Act.8135Plans for, employer may operate under, when.5125Commission approve and regulate.5125Teeth, injury to, how compensated.7433Paid at least once a month.7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834Weekly compensation, amount of.7834Paid for life7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135			
Physician and surgeon, who may select.8135Employe may select, when.8135Who authorized under Act.8135Plans for, employer may operate under, when.5125Commission approve and regulate.5125Teeth, injury to, how compensated.7433Paid at least once a month.7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834Weekly compensation, amount of.7834Paid for life7734Paid for life7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135			
Employe may select, when			
Who authorized under Act			
Commission approve and regulate			
Teeth, injury to, how compensated.7433Paid at least once a month.7030Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834Limited to \$2,6007834Weekly compensation, amount of.7834Parimanent total disability7734Permanent total disability7734Methor life7734Mathematical field for life7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135	Plans for, employer may operate under, when	51	25
Paid at least once a month	Commission approve and regulate	51	25
Paralysis of member equivalent to loss.73-b32Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834Limited to \$2,6007834Weekly compensation, amount of.7834Permanent total disability7734Paid for life7734Termination of7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135		74	33
Permanent partial disability7834How determined7834Limited to \$2,6007834Weekly compensation, amount of.7834Permanent total disability7734Paid for life7734Termination of7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135			
How determined 78 34 Limited to \$2,600 78 34 Weekly compensation, amount of. 78 34 Permanent total disability 77 34 Paid for life 77 34 Termination of 77 34 How regulated 77 34 What constitutes prima facie. 77 34 Physician or Surgeon 81 35 Who authorized 81 35			
Limited to \$2,6007834Weekly compensation, amount of.7834Permanent total disability7734Paid for life7734Termination of7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135			
Weekly compensation, amount of			
Permanent total disability7734Paid for life7734Termination of7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135			
Paid for life7734Termination of7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon7734Employe may select, when.8135Who authorized8135			
Termination of7734How regulated7734What constitutes prima facie.7734Physician or Surgeon8135Who authorized8135			
What constitutes prima facie		77	34
Physician or SurgeonEmploye may select, when	How regulated	77	34
Employe may select, when	What constitutes prima facie	77	34
Who authorized 81 35	Physician or Surgeon		
	Employe may select, when	81	35
Who may select 81 35			
	Who may select	81	35

ACCIDENT BENEFITS-Continued-	Section	Page
Power of Attorney To collect or receipt for compensation, void	86	37
Previous injury	10	
Not preclude compensation for latter injury	48	24 24
Weekly wage, how determined	$\frac{48}{76}$	24
Previous Loss of Scheduled Member Loss of other members, how compensated	76	33
	76	33
Schedule for Weekly amount of compensation for	76	33
Reduction of Compensation		
50 per cent reduction, when	83	36
Intoxication	83-c	36
Wilful non-use of safety devices	83-a	36
Wilful violation of safety rule	83-b	36
Remarriage		0.0
Husband or wife without children Lump sum	55	26
Husband or wife with children	55	26
Shares survive	73	31
Specific injuries, schedule of Additional compensation, when	73-е	31
Infection or other cause	73-e	32
Amputation between joints, how estimated	73-e	32
	79 79	32
Concurrent injuries, additional compensation for	10	00
Loss of use, wholly or partial Compensation for, how determined	73-g	32
Paralysis equivalent to loss	73-b	32
Relative injuries	73-g	32
Temporary total, additional compensation for, when.	79 79	35
Time runs from date of actual loss	73-a	32
Two losses, disabilities shall be added	73-f	32
Weekly amount, how limited	73-d	32
Special trust fund for compensation payments		
Commission require compensation paid to them	91	39
Action, how taken	91	39
How constituted and administered	91	39
Investment of	91	39
Surplus, if any, disposition of	91	39
Teeth, injury to, how compensated	74	33
Limit of \$100	74	33
Temporary partial disability	72	30
Limit of \$1300	72	30
Weekly amount maximum	72	30
Temporary total disability	71	30
Weekly amount of compensation	71	30
Temporary total, in addition to permanent partial	79	35
Employe entitled to compensation for both	79	35
Third party causing injury or death	0.5	
Right to proceed against, how exercised Election, waives compensation when	87 87	37 37
Unsanitary or injurious practices	01	01
Penalty for	81	35
Waiting Period, 10 days	70	30
CT EFFECTIVE MAY 1, 1919	153	54
Procedural provisions retro-active	149	54
Prior Act continued in force	149	54

AGREEMENTS	Section	Page
Approval of by Commission	93	39
Award, have effect of when	93	39
Form of, Commission prescribe	93	39
APPEALS		
To Commission from referee	97	41
Commission act on, how	97	41
Petition for, essentials of	97	41
Time for	97	41
Waiver, by failure to appeal	97	41
To District Court	98	99
Answer	101	42
Change of venue	101	42
Complaint .	101	42
Continuances .	104	43
Grounds for, specified	103	42
Hearing of, how brought on for	101	42
Judgment	107	43
Order Commission enter proper award	107	43
Recommit controversy and remand	107	43
Jury, not to be tried to	105	43
Non-prejudicial errors disregarded	105	43
Only after review by Commission	98	41
Precedence given to, over civil causes	100	41
Record of Commission sent to Court	101	42
Record returned to Commission 20 days after judg-		
ment	106	43
Remand case to Commission, when	102	42
Commission hear new issue	102	42
Court proceed with trial	102	42
Procedure before Commission	102	42
Time for	98	41
Trial, brought on for within thirty days	104	43
Exception	104	43
Trial, manner of	100	41
Venue of action	99	41
Who may take	99	41
To Supreme Court		
Bond unnecessary	108	43
Decide within sixty days	108	43
Law questions only reviewed	108	43
Who may take	108	43
ATTORNEY		
Fees of		
Contract for, valid only after approval	90	38
Lien for, when valid	90	38
Power of		
To collect or receipt for compensation, void	86	37
To concer of receipt for compensation, forder the	00	0.
ATTORNEY GENERAL OR DISTRICT ATTORNEY		
Attorney General represent Commission	109-120	43, 46
District Attorney represent Commission	109-120	43, 46
AWARD (See Findings and Award)		
BOOKS-PAYROLLS		
Commission or agents may inspect, when	35	20
Production of, how compelled	36	20
Public employers, open to commission	138	51

BURIAL EXPENSES (See Funeral Expenses)	Section	Page
CASUAL EMPLOYES		
Not entitled to benefits of Act, when	9-b	13
CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION		
Form of	84	36
Limitation .	84	36
Generally one year	84	36
Mentally incompetent, 18 months	85	37
Minor children, 18 months	85	37
Minor children, widow may make	68	29
Service of, prescribed	84	36
Who may file	84	36
Commission may file for claimant when	84	36
COMMITMENT TO JAIL		
Failure to obey orders of Commission	36	20
Affidavit to procedure	36	20
COMMISSION (See Industrial Commission)		
Defined	3	12
	v	
COMMON CARRIERS AND EMPLOYES EXCEPTED FROM	10	13
ACT	10	13
COMMON LAW		
Causes of action, abolished when	13	14
Defenses when abrogated	12	14
Defenses, when not abrogated	14	14
COMPENSATION (See Accident, Benefits, Claim for, De- pendency, Death Benefits, Lump Sums)		
Assignment of, prohibited	86	37
Attachment, exempt from	86	37
Cease when	58	27
Claim for	84	36
Commutation prohibited	86	37
Election to take, when third party is also liable	87	37
Execution, exempt from	86	37
Exempt from creditors	86	37
Lien of, against assets of employer or insurer	88	38
Payment of		
Monthly Special Trust Fund of Commission ordered paid into,	70	30
when	91	39
Reduction of, 50 per cent, causes for	83	36
Right to, when exclusive	15	14
Termination of, causes for	58	27
Third party causing injury Rights of injured employe	07	27
reflues of unfaced employ?,	87	37
CONSTRUCTION OF ACT		
Act effective May 1st, 1919	153	54
Emergency clause	152	54
Existing rights not affected	148	54
Jurisdiction of Commission continued under prior act	147-148	53, 54
Legislative intention, declaration of	150	54
Prior acts saved	148	54
Procedural provisions retro-active	149	54
Repealing clause	151	54

CONTRACTORS AND LESSEES	Section	Page
Employers must insure, when	49-50	24
Conditions	49-50	24
Insurer may examine books and records of	28	18
COSTS		
Court, not charge when	109	43
Transcripts, fees for	116	45
Witnesses, assessed against other party, when	111	44
DEATH BENEFITS (See Dependency)		
Administration not necessary	57	27
Amount of compensation for	54	26
Period of time	54	26
Weekly amount	54	26
Application of, to dependents	67	29
Cease, lapse or terminate, when	58	27
Death	58-b	27
Shares survive	58-b	27
Marriage .	58-a	27
Son reaching eighteen years, except when Claim for, who may make	58-c 68-84	27 29-36
Death as a result of accident within 2 years	63	29-30
	0.0	28
Compensation, amount of No dependents	63-a	28
Partial dependents	63-e	. 28
Wholly dependents	63-b	. 28
Death not proximate result of accident	00-0	20
Compensation to partial dependents	65	29
Accident causing permanent partial injury	65-h	29
Accident causing permanent total injury	65-a	29
Compensation to wholly dependents	00 11	20
Accident causing permanent partial injury	65-h-b	29
Accident causing permanent total injury	64-a	28
Determined as of date of accident	57	27
Foreign dependents, limited to one-third	66	29
Funeral Benefits		
Amount of	59	27
Compensation limited to, when	59	27
In addition to all other compensation	59	27
Paid to whom	59	27
How apportioned	67	29
Paid to whom	67	29
Partial dependents	56	27
Amount of, how determined	56	27
Payment to one subsequent in light	67	29
DEFENSES		
Common Law		
Abrogated when	12	14
When not abrogated	13-14	14
DEFINITIONS		
Commission	3	12
Employe	9	13
Exceptions	9-a-b	
Employer	8	12
Exceptions	8-c	13
Employment	7	12
Masculine includes feminine	4	12
Order	5	12
Place of employment	6	12
Singular includes plural	4	12

EPENDENCY (See also Death Benefits)	Section	Page
Actual dependents, who are	53	26
Essentials of	53	26
Administration not necessary	57	27
Adopted child, compensation for	52-b	26
Application of, benefits	67	29
Compensation		
	54	26
Period of time for payment of	54	26
Weekly amounts	58 58	20
Cease, lapse or terminate, when	58-b	27
Death		
Shares survive	58-b	27 27
Marriage	58-a	
Son reaching 18 years, except when	58-c	27
Children		
Adopted, rights of	52-b	26
Illegitimate, when entitled	61	28
Minor under 18		
	68	29
Claim for, widow may make		=
Conclusively presumed	52-a	26
Posthumous	52-b	26
Payments to, Commission safeguard	68	29
Son reaching eighteen,		
Entitled to compensation, when	58-c	27
Death not proximate result of accident	0.5	
Compensation, amount of, partial dependent	65	29
Accident causing permanent partial disability	65-b	29
Accident causing permanent total disability	65-a	29
Compensation, amount of, wholly dependent		
Accident causing permanent partial disability	64-b	29
Accident causing permanent total disability	64-a	28
Dependent not party in interest during life of employe	60	28
Determined as of date of accident	57	27
Females, entitled to when	53	26
	00	
Foreign Dependents		
Death benefits to, limited to one-third	66	29
Funeral benefits, \$75.00	59	27
Compensation limited to when	59	27
In addition to all other compensation	59	27
Paid to whom	59	27
How apportioned	67	29
Illegitimate children	61	28
Entitled to compensation, when	61	28
Minor children under 18, conclusively	52-a	26
Males over eighteen, entitled to when	53	26
Paid to whom	67	29
	01	20
Partial Dependents		
Amount of Compensation	56	27
How determined	56	27
Payment to one subsequent in right	67	29
Posthumous child	52-b	26
Remarriage		
Husband or wife without children receive lump sum.	55	26
Husband or wife with children	55	26 26
Share goes to children	55	26
Unknown Dependents		
Rights of after appearance	69	30
Wife conclusively presumed, when	52-a	26
Who may be, generally	52 - 53	26
		- 0

DEPOSITIONS	Section	Page
Ordered when and how	114	45
DISABILITY (See Accident Benefits, Death Benefits)		
DISTRICT ATTORNEY		
Represent Commission	109-120	43, 46
DISTRICT COURTS (See Appeals)		
Enforce orders of Commission by attachment	113	44
Commitment to jail, when	36	20
Fees, not charge	109	43
EARNINGS (See Wages)		
ELECTION (See Acceptance, Rejection)		
Binds who	19	16
Effect of	13-19	14, 16
Employe	18	16
Employer Conclusively presumed, when	16 16	$\frac{15}{15}$
Who must make	16	15
How made	17	15
Rejection		
Notice of, posted Third party causing injury	20	16
Right of injured employe to elect	87	37
Withdrawal of, how made	17	15
Notice of	20	16
EMERGENCY CLAUSE	152-3	54
EMPLOYE		
Casual, when not subject to act	9-b	13
Commission may appoint	42-43	22
Bonds of, paid by State	46	23
Qualifications of	43	22
Salaries of, how fixed and paid	44	22
Compensation Bight to when employer fulls to incure	27	18
Right to, when employer fails to insure Common carriers, not subject to Act	10	13
Definitions of	9	13
Election to come under act	18	16
Effect of	19	16
Injury to, caused by third party	87	37
Loaning services of, who liable	11	13
Rejection of Report injury to employer	20 31	16 19
Penalty for failure	31	19
EMPLOYER		10
Common Carrier not subject to act	$10 \\ 49-50$	$\frac{13}{24}$
Contractors and Lessees, must insure when Definition of	43-30	12
Election to come under act	0	15
Conclusively presumed when	16	15
Effect of	13-17	14, 15
How made	17	15
Rejection, notice of posted	20	16
Who must make	16 17	15
Withdrawal of, how made Notice of	17 20	15 16
Information, furnished to Commission	32	19
Form of	3	12

EMPLOYER—Continued—	Section	Page
Insurance		
Failure to comply with Act		
Commission enjoin operations	89	38
Employe may claim compensation	21	16
Compensation increased 50 per cent	27	18
EMPLOYMENT		
Defined	7	12
Place of, defined	6	12
ENTRY INTO PLACES OF EMPLOYMENT		
Commission or agents may make, to investigate	34	20
EVIDENCE		
Ex-parte testimony	94	40
Physicians	81	35
Presentation of	94	40
EXAMINATIONS		
	35	20
Books, records and payrolls of employers by Commission Of injured employe by physician, when ordered	81	35
Penalty for failure to submit	81	35
	01	00
EXPENSES (See Industrial Commission)		
FEES		
Court, not charge when	109	43
Transcripts	116	45
Witness	111	44
FINDING AND AWARD		
Action to set aside		
How, when and who may take	98-99	41
Agreements have effect of, when approved by Commission	93	39
Referee, enter after healing	96	40
Commission review, when	97	41
Final when	96	40
Review on own motion, when	110	44 44
Procedure	110	44
FUNERAL EXPENSES (See Death Benefits, Dependency)		
Amount of	59	27
Compensation limited to, when	59	27
In addition to all other compensation	59	27
Paid to whom	59	27
HEARING (See Procedure, Appeals)		
Adjournment of	94	40
Conduct of	94	40
District Court	101	42
Evidence	94 94	40 40
Ex-parte testimony	94 94	40
Held where Inspection of premises	94 94	40
Notice of	94	40
Referees	01	40
Power and authority of	96	40
Who may call	94	40
Who may hold	95	40
Commission or two Commissioners	95	40
Referee	95	40

HERNIA (See Accident Benefits)

INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION	Section	Page
Administer and enforce act	2	11
Agent or referee, appointment of Books and records of employers	40	21
Examine and inspect	35	20
Defined	3	12
Employes of, how appointed	42-43	22
Bonds of, paid by State	46	23
Qualifications of	43	22
Salaries .	44	22
Employment, place of, enter and investigate, when Expenses of, how paid	$\frac{34}{37}$	$\frac{20}{20}$
Orders of		
Defined .	5	12
Effect of	38	21
Enforcement of	36-113	20, 44
Public officials enforce act		22
Technicalities, not void	39	21
Referee		
Appointment of	40-96	21-40
Powers and duties of	40-a, 96	21 - 40
State Compensation Insurance Fund		
Commission control	123	46
General Powers and Duties enumerated	124	46
INFORMATION		
Employers must furnish	33	20
Public Officials, furnish to Commission	138	51
INJUNCTION OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS		
	0.0	9.0
Commission may secure for failure to insure	89	38
INJURIES		
Compensated when	15	14
Employe report to employer	31	19
Employer report to Commission	30	19
Intentionally self-inflicted, not covered	15-c	15
INSPECTION		
Books, records and payrolls	35-40-a	20, 21
Premises	94	40
INSURANCE		
Classification of risks filed with Commission	23	17
Commission approve Compensation ordered paid to Commission, when	23	17
Special Trust Fund	91	39
How created and administered	91	39
Contracts for		
Essential of, prescribed	25	17
Form of, Commission prescribe and approve	22	17
Subject to Act	22	17
Void, when	22	17
Cutting or rebating of rates, prohibited	24	17
	24	17
Penalty for	24	14
Employer failing to procure or keep in force	00	
Commission enjoin business operations of	89	38
Employe may claim compensation from	27	18
Compensation increased 50%	27	18
Examine books of employer or contractor, when	28	18

INSURANCE-Continued-	Section	Page
License, revoked or suspended, when	26	18
Methods of,	21	16
Self Insurance	21-c	17
State Fund	21-a	16
Public employers, must insure in State Fund	21-c	17
Stock or Mutual companies Policies, Commission prescribe and approve	21-b 22	$16 \\ 17$
Essentials of	25	17
Public employers	20	
Books and records open to Commission	138	51
Payment of premium	137	51
Premium from, how determined	136	51
Readjustment of former premiums paid	136	51
State's Premium		
Commission informed General Assembly of amount	137	51
Rates and system of, filed with Commission	23	17
Commission approve	23-24	17
Withdrawal of, how made	23	17
Commission may grant	29	19
Conditions	29	19
Revocation	29	19
Violation of Act by Carrier		
Penalty for	26	18
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER		
Examine and visit fund	143	53
State Fund, report to	143	53
INTENTIONALLY SELF-INFLICTED INJURIES		
Not covered by Act	15-c	15
INVESTIGATIONS		
Agent may make	40	21
Appointed in writing	40	21
Powers and Duties of	40-a	21
Contemporaneous may hold	40-b	21
Decision of Commission, how made	40-b	21
Places of employment	34	20
LESSEES		
Employer must insure, when	49-50	24
Books and Records of, insurer examine	28	18
LIMITATIONS		
Claim for compensation.		
General, one year	84	36
Mentally incompetent, 18 months	85	37
Minor children, 18 months	85	37
LOANING SERVICES		
Constitutes new contract of hire	11	13
Effect of who liable for compensation	11	13
		10
LUMP SUMS	0.0	
Allowed when Deductions for	82	36
Discretion of Commission final	82 82	36 36
Permanent total disability	04	90
Aggregate of lump sums, limited	82	36

LUMP SUMS—Continued – Procedure	Section 82	Page 36
Husband or wife without children, 50% Basis of	55 55	$\frac{26}{26}$
MEDICAL, SURGICAL, HOSPITAL	51	25
Amount of, employer must furnish		
Employer must insure, except when	51	25
Fees for, schedule of, Commission establish	51	25
Hernia, special operating fee for	80	35
Physician and surgeon, who may select	81	35
Employe may select, when	81	35
Who authorized under act	81	35
Plans for, employer may operate under, when	51	25
Commission approve and regulate	51	25
Teeth, injury to, how compensated	74	33
NOTICES		
Injuries		
Employer notify Commission, when	30	19
Employe notify employer, when	31	19
Penalty	31	19
	91	19
ORDERS		
Defined	5	12
Effect of	38	21
Enforcement of	36 - 113	20, 44
Commitment to jail	36	20
Prima facie, reasonable and lawful	38	21
Public officials enforce	45	22
Technicalities not void	39	21
PARALYSIS		
Of member equivalent to loss	73-b	32
PENALTIES		
Collected how	119	46
Applicable to Commission's expense	119	46
Disobedience of orders of Commission	36	20
Employe, failure to report injury	31	19
Examination of employe by physician		
Failure to submit to	81	35
False Statement, deemed perjury	121	46
General, for violation of Act	117	45
Each day separate offense	118	45
Insurance		
Failure to obtain or keep in force	27-89	18, 38
Misrepresentation of wage expenditure	144	53
Subpoena		
Failure to appear	112	44
Unsanitary or injurious practices	81	35
PERJURY		
False Statements, when deemed	121	46
PERMANENT PARTIAL DISABILITY (See Accident Benefits	;)	
PERMANENT TOTAL DISABILITY (See Accident Benefits)		
PHYSICIANS		
Employe may select, when	81	35
Employe submit to examination by	81	35
Employer may select in first instance	81	35 35
Employer may select in first instance	01	00

PHYSICIANS—Continucd— Testify when Who authorized	Section 81 81	Page 35 35
POLICIES		
Commission prescribe and approve Essentials	$\frac{22}{25}$	17 17
PREVIOUS INJURY		
Not preclude compensation for latter injury	48	24
Weekly wage, how dctcrmined	48	24
PROGRAMBE		
PROCEDURE Agreements	93	39
Approval of, by Commission	93	39
Effect of	93	39
Form of, Commission prescribe	93	39
Appeals	97	41
From referee to Commission	97 97	41 41
Petition for, prescribed Time for	97 97	41
Procedure by Commission	97	41
To District Court	98	41
Answer of Commission	101	42
Change of venue	101	42
Complaint	101	42
Continuance	104	43
Grounds for	103	42
Hearing, how brought on	101	42
Jury, not to be tried to	$\frac{105}{107}$	43 43
Judgment Recommit controversy and remand	107	43
Order Commission to enter proper award	107	43
Non-prejudicial errors disregarded	105	43
Only after review by Commission	98	41
Parties	99	41
Precedence given to, over civil causes	100	41
Record of Commission sent to court	101	42
Record returned to Commission after judgment	106	43
Except when	106	43 42
Remand case to Commission for further trial, when Commission make new finding and award	$\frac{102}{102}$	42 42
Court proceed with trial	102	42
Procedure before Commission	102	42
Trial brought to, within 30 days, except	104	43
Time for	98	41
Trial of, manner	100	41
Jury not to be tried to	105	43
Tricd on record of Commission	105	43
Venue of	99	41
Who may take To Supreme Court	99 108	41 43
Bond unnecessary	108	43
Decide within sixty days	108	43
Law questions only reviewed	108	43
Who may take	108	43
Attorney General represent Commission Award	109	43
Action to set aside		
How, when and who may take	98-99	41
Agreements have effect of, when approved by Com-		
mission	93	39

PROCEDURE—Continued—	Section	Page
Award—Continued—		
Referee, enter after hearing	96	40
Commission review, when	97	41
Final when	96	40
Review on own motion, when	110	44
Procedure	110	44
Costs, may be taxed when	109	43
Depositions		
Who may take and how	114	45
Disputes, submitted as provided in Act	92	39
District Attorney represent Commission	109	43
Fees, clerk of court not charge when	109	43
Transcripts	116	45
Witness, assessed against other parties	111	44
Hearings	94	40
Adjournment of	94	40
Conduct of	94	40
Ex-parte testimony	94	40
Held where	94	40
Inspection of premises	94	40
Notice of	94	40
Who may call	94	40
Who may hold	95	40
Commission or two Commissioners	95	40
Referee	95	40
Perjury	121	46
Record of proceedings, Commission keep	115	45
Referees	96	40
Appointment of	96	40
Award by	96	40
Final when	96	40
Notice of	97	41
Notice of Referee's award	97	41
Power and authority of	95-96	40
Review by Commission of Referees award	97	41
Subpoenaes		
Attendance and production of documents		
Attachment from District Court to compel	113	44
Commitment to jail, for failure	36	20
Commission agent or referee issue	111	44
Fees for service of	111	44
Issuance of Penalty for failure to appear	$111 \\ 112$	44 44
Witness fees and mileage for	112	44
Commission assess against other parties, when	111	44
Testimony	111	44
Taken and transcribed by stenographer	115	45
Transcripts of, received in evidence, when	115	45
Copies of, furnished on demand	116	45
Fees for	116	45
Fees for, applicable to Commission's expense	116	45
rees for, applicable to commission's expense	110	10
Witnesses		
Fees and mileage for	111	44
Assessed against other party, when	111	44
POWER OF ATTORNEY		
Collect or receive compensation void	86	37
PREMIUMS (See State Compensation Insurance Fund, Insurance)		

PROCEEDINGS Record of, Commission keep	Section 115	Page 45
Returned to Commission from District Court, when.	106	43
Sent to District Court on appeal	101	42
Under prior Acts ratified	147-148	53, 54
Under prior Acts ratified	111-110	00, 01
PUBLIC EMPLOYERS	100	5.1
Books and records of, open to Commission	138	51
Compulsory insurance in State Fund	21-c	17
Officials of, furnish information to Commission	138	٤1
Premium from, how determined	136	51
Premium, payment of	137	51
Public Officials, duties of	137	51
Public examiner audit payroll of, yearly	138	51
Readjustment of former premiums paid	136	51
State premium		
Commission inform General Assembly of	137	51
PUBLIC OFFICIALS		
Attorney General represent Commission	109-120	43, 46
District Attorney represent Commission	109-120	43, 16
Enforce orders of Commission	45	22
Furnish information to Commission	45-138	22-51
Furnish miormation to commission	40=190	10-01
RATES (See State Compensation Insurance Fund, Insurance)		
Cutting or rebating of, prohibited	24	17
RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS		
Commission keep	115	45
Sent to District Court on appeal	101	42
Remanded to Commission, when	106	43
REFEREE		
Appeals from, to Commission	97	41
Appointment of	40-96	1, 40
Award by, notice of	97	41
Award may be entered by	96	40
Hearings, may hold	95	40
Power and authority of	96	40
Review of award, by Commission	97	40
Review of award, by Commission	94	41
RE-HEARING		
Of referee's award, by Commission	97	41
Petition for	97	41
Time for	97	41
DELECTION OF ACE (Geo Assessments		
REJECTION OF ACT (See Acceptance, Election)		10
Employe	18	16
Employer	16	15
Notice of, posted	20	16
REMARRIAGE		
Husband or wife		
With children	55	26
Without children	55	26
REPEALING CLAUSE	151	54
Prior Act, continued in force	148	54
REPORTS		
Employe make of injuries to employer	31	19
Employer make of injuries to Commission	30	19
General, by employers to Commission	32	19
Confidential, shall be	32	19
Verified	33	20
State Fund to Insurance Commissioner.	143	53

RULES AND REGULATIONS	Section	Page
Commission may make	41	21
Scope of	41	21
Effective when	41	21
Copies of, delivered	41	21
	11	21
SAFETY		
Places of employment, investigate	34	20
Agent may make	40	21
Contemporaneous	40-b	21
Decisions of Commission, how made40		21
Decisions of commission, now made	- 10-21-10-10	21
SELF INSURANCE		
Commission may grant	29	19
Conditions, Commission prescribe	23	13
	$\frac{28}{21}$	
Employers may procure	21 29	16
Revocation of	29	19
GEDUICE OF DROCEDCC		
SERVICE OF PROCESS		
Fees for	111	44
Who may serve	111	44
SINGULAR NUMBER INCLUDES PLURAL	4	12
SPECIAL TRUST FUND		
Commission require compensation paid into, when	91	39
Action, how taken	91	39
Constituted and administered how	91	39
Investment of	91	39
Surplus, if any, disposition of	91	29
SPECIFIC INJURIES, SCHEDULE OF		
(See Accident Benefits)		
(See Accident Denents)		
STATE OF COLORADO		
Premium of, General Assembly provide	137	51
Tremum of, General Assembly provide	101	01
STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND		
Application of	125	47
Arrearage		
Cancelation on 20 days' default	133	50
Liability during default	133	50
Reimbursement to Fund	133	50
Blanks and forms, prepare and distribute	145	53
Classify places of employment	126 - 127	47, 48
Amend classes	123	46
Commission control	123	46
Authority and jurisdiction of	123	46
General powers and duties enumerated	124	46
Contracts of insurance enter into	12 4- b	47
Medical and surgical treatment, contract for	124-c	47
Sue and be sued	124-a	47
Consist of what	125	47
Continuing Fund, shall be	125	47
Contracts of insurance, effective when	132	49
Disbursements from, how paid	140	52
Dividends to policy holders		
How and to whom paid	132	49
Establishment of	122	46
Examination of	143	53
Funds, Commission keep account of	130	49
Insurance Commissioner visit	143	53

STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND-Continued-	Section	Page
Investment of funds	141	52
Salc of investments	141	52
Misrepresentation of wage expenditures	144	53
Penalty for	144	53
Place of employment, classify	126-127	47, 48
Amend classes	132	49
Premiums		
Adjustment of, to actual expenditures	134	50
Amount of, how determined	126	47
Assessment plan, based upon	129-a	48
Based on payroll expenditure	135	51
Certificate of payment given	135	51
Due semi-annually in advance	135	51
Elements of	128	48
How fixed and determined	129	48
Reserve	129-a	48
Surplus	129-b	48
	129-0	48
Items to be disregarded	125	47
Manner of payment	120	41
Public employers	100	51
How determined	136	51
Payment of premium	137	51
Public officials, duties of	137	51
Readjustment of former premiums paid in	136	51
State's premium	137	51
Readjustment of	132	49
Subclasses	127	48
Public employers		_
Books and records of, open to Commission	138	51
Compulsory insurance in State Fund	21-с	17
Payment of premium	137	51
Premium from, how determined	136	51
Public examiner, audit expenditures yearly	138	51
Public officials assist Commission	138	51
Readjustment of former premiums paid in	136	51
State's premium	137	51
Rates, amendment of (See premiums, under this heading)	132	49
Rates, schedule of, prepare and post	146	53
Reinsurance		
Catastrophe hazard	139	52
Premiums for, how paid	139	52 *
Report to Insurance Commissioner	143	53
Reserves		
How determined	129-a-c	
State Treasurer		
Bond for performance of duty	142	53
Custodian of fund	140	52
Subclasses	127	48
Surplus	129-b	48
Amount of	131	49
Warrants of, how issued	140	52
SUBPOENAES		
Commission agent or referee issue	111	44
Fees for service of	111	44
Obedience to	111	4.4
How compelled	36-113	20.44
Penalty for failure to appear	30~113 112	20, 44
Who may serve		44 44
Witness fees and mileage for	111	
Assessed against parties, when	111	44
21000000 against parties, wildli	111	44

12		
TECHNICALITIES Not void orders or acts	Section 39	Page 21
TEETH, INJURY TO, HOW COMPENSATED (See Accident Benefits)		
TEMPORARY PARTIAL DISABILITY (See Accident Benefits)		
TEMPORARY TOTAL DISABILITY (See Accident Benefits)		
TEMPORARY TOTAL, IN ADDITION TO PERMANENT PARTIAL (See Accident Benefits)		
TESTIMONY Ex-parte when may be taken Physicians Presentation of Taken and transcribed by stenographer Transcripts of, received in evidence of, when Copies furnished on demand Fees applicable to expenses Fees for	94 81 94 115 116 116 116 116	40 35 40 45 45 45 45 45
THIRD PARTY'S LIABILITY Right to proceed against Exercised how Extent of insurer's liability Waiver of compensation, when	87 87 87 87	37 37 37 37
TRANSCRIPTS Commission's stenographer shall make Copies of, furnished on demand Fees for Applicable to expenses Received in evidence, when	115 116 116 116 116 116	45 45 45 45 45
WAGES Board and lodging, included in computation Defined Items included Weekly,	47-a 47-a 47-a	23 23 23
How computed Exceptional cases Minors Previous injury disregarded	47-b 47-c 47-d 48	23 23 23 24
WAITING PERIOD TEN DAYS		
WITNESSES		
Attendance, how compelled Fees and mileage for Assessed against parties, when	36-113 111 111	20, 44 44 44

The Industrial Commission Law

CHAPTER 180, PAGE 562, SESSION LAWS OF 1915.

Sec. 1. The term "Commission" when used in this Act shall mean the "Industrial Commission of Colorado."

Sec. 2. The term "Commissioner" when used in this Act shall mean one of the members of the Commission.

Sec. 3. Unless the context otherwise requires, a word used in this Act in the singular number shall also include the plural; and a word used in this Act in the masculine gender shall also include the feminine.

Sec. 4. The following terms as used in this Act, shall be construed and have the following meaning, unless otherwise specifically defined in the context:

(a) The term "place of employment" shall mean and include every place, whether indoors or out or underground, and the premises appurtenant thereto, where either temporarily or permanently any industry, trade or business is carried ou, or where any process or operation, directly or indirectly relating to any industry, trade or business is carried on, and where any person is directly or indirectly employed by another for direct or indirect gain or profit.

(b) The term "employment" shall mean and include any trade, occupation or process of manufacture, or any method of carrying on such trade, occupation or process of manufacture in which any person may be engaged.

(c) The term "employer" shall mean and include:

I. The State, and each county, city, town, irrigation and school district therein, and all public institutions and administrative boards thereof.

II. Every person, association of persons, firm and private corporation (including any public service corporation), manager, personal representative, assignee, trustee and receiver, who has four (4) or more persons regularly engaged in the same business or employment, (except as otherwise expressly provided in this Act), in service under any contract of hire, express or implied. 111. This Act is not intended to apply to employers of private domestic servants or farm and ranch labor; nor to employers who employ less than four employees regularly in the same business, or in or about the same place of employment.

(d) The term "employee" shall mean and include every person in the service of the State or of any county, city, town, irrigation or school district therein, or of any public institution or administrative board thereof, and any other person, association of persons, firm, private corporation, including any public service corporation, personal representative, assignee, trustee or receiver under any contract of hire, express or implied, including aliens, and also including minors who are legally permitted to work under the laws of this State, who, for the purposes of this Act, shall be considered the same, and shall have the same power of contracting with respect to their employment as adult employees.

(e) The term "order" shall mean and include any decision, rule, regulation, direction, requirement or standard of the Commission, or any other determination arrived at or decision made by such Commission.

(f) The term "general order" shall mean and include such order of the Commission as applies generally throughout the State to all persons, employments or places of employment, under the jurisdiction of the Commission. All other orders of the Commission shall be considered special orders.

(g) The term "local order" shall mean and include any ordinance, order, rule or determination of any common council, board of aldermen, board of supervisors, board of trustees, or board of commissioners, of any county, town, city, or city and county operating under any general or special law of this State, or of the Board of Health of the State or any municipality therein, or any order or direction of any official of the State or municipality therein.

(h) The term "deputy" shall mean and include any person employed by the Commission designated as such deputy by the Commission, and who may be engaged in the performance of duties under the direction of the Commission.

(i) The term "safe" or "safety" as applied to an employment or place of employment, shall mean such freedom from danger to the life, health and safety of employees, and such reasonable means of notification, egress and escape in case of fire, as the nature of the employment will reasonably permit.

Sec. 5. There is hereby created a board which shall be known as the "INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF COLORADO." Within thirty days after the passage of this Act the Governor, by and with the consent of the Senate, shall appoint one member whose term of office shall expire March 1, 1917, a second member whose term of office shall expire March 1, 1919, and a third member whose term of office shall expire March 1, 1921. Upon the expiration of each appointment, the Governor shall appoint members of the Commission, by and with the advice and consent of the Senate, for terms of six years each. Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner for unexpired terms. Not more than two of the Commissioners shall be members of the same political party. Not more than one of the apointees to such Commission shall be a person who, on account of his previous vocation, employment or affiliations, can be classed as a representative of employers, and not more than one of such appointees shall be a person who, on account of his previous vocation, employment or affiliations, can be classed as a representative of employees;

Each member of the Commission, before entering upon the duties of his office, shall take the oath prescribed by the Constitution, and shall give good and sufficient bond running to the people of the State of Colorado, in the penal sum of ten thousand dollars, conditioned that he shall faithfully discharge the duties of his office and shall account for and pay over to the person entitled thereto, such moneys as shall come into his possession; said bond shall be signed by a surety company duly authorized to do business in this State, or by two or more individuals as surety or sureties and shall be subject to approval by the Governor and shall then be filed with the Secretary of State. If surety company bonds shall be furnished, the premium therefor shall be paid by the State as other expenses of the Commission are paid. In case of a vacancy, the remaining two members of the Commission shall exercise all the powers and authority of the Commission until such vacancy is filled. Each member of the Commission shall receive an annual salary of not to exceed four thousand dollars, and actual expenses necessarily incurred in the performance of his duties, which shall be in full for all services performed. The Commissioners shall devote their entire time to the duties of their office.

A majority of said Commissioners shall constitute a quorum to transact business and for the exercise of any of the powers or authority conferred by this Act.

Sec. 6. The Commission shall have power, with the aproval of the State Auditing Board, to employ during its pleasure such deputies, experts, statisticans, accountants, inspectors, clerks, and other employees as it may deem necessary to carry out the provisions of this Act or to perform the duties and exercise the powers conferred by law upon the Commission. The commissioners, secretary, deputies, statisticans, accountants, inspectors, clerks, and all other employees, except experts and actuaries in the employ of the Commission, shall have been for two years prior to such employment or appointment, bona fide residents of the state of Colorado, and skilled and efficient in the duties assigned to them, and each and all of them, except only the experts shall, while in the employ of the Commission, devote their entire time to the service of the Commission. The Commission shall employ and always maintain in the department a compensation actuary who shall be experienced and skilled and fully competent to perform the duties of the position, and to assist in or take charge of the practical operation of this Act under the general direction of the Commission. The Actuary shall receive such salary as may be agreed upon by the State Auditing Board.

All deputies, statisticans, accountants, clerks, experts and all other employees of the Commission shall receive such compensation as may be fixed by law or by the Commission, acting in conjunction with the State Auditing Board. The salary or compensation of every person holding employment under the Commission shall be paid monthly from the funds appropriated for the use of the Commission, after being aproved by the Commission, and the State Auditing Board.

All expenses incurred by the Commission pursuant to the provisions of this Act, including the actual and necessary traveling expenses and other expenses and disbursements of the commissioners, their deputies and employees, incurred while on business of the Commission, shall be paid from the funds appropriated for the use of the Commission, upon claims therefor, itemized and sworn to, made by the person who incurred the same, which shall be allowed by the Commission, subject to the approval of the State Auditing Board.

Sec. 7. The Commission shall be known collectively as the "Industrial Commission of Colorado" and in that name may sue and be sued. It shall have a seal upon which shall be inscribed the words "INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION—COLORADO—SEAL." Its seal shall be affixed to all orders, awards, proceedings and copies thereof and to such other instruments as the Commission shall direct. All courts shall take judicial notice of said seal, and any copy of any record or proceeding of the Commission certified under said seal shall be received in all courts as evidence as if it were the original thereof.

Sec. 8. The Commission shall keep its office at the Capitol and shall be provided by the Board of Capitol Managers or its successors with suitable rooms. The Commission is authorized to procure all necessary office furniture, stationery, books, periodicals, maps, instruments, apparatus and appliances and other necessary supplies and incur such other expenses as may be actual and necessary, and the same shall be paid for in the same manner as other expenses authorized by this Act. The Commission or a Commissioner may hold sessions at any place other than the Capitol when the convenience of the Commission or the parties interested requires.

Sec. 9. Within thirty days after the passage of this Act, the Commission shall meet at the Capitol and organize in the manner

herein provided. It shall be the duty of the secretary to keep a full and correct record of all proceedings of the Commission, to issue all necessary processes, writs, warrants, orders, awards, and notices and to perform all other duties as the Commission may prescribe. He shall also have supervision of the collection of data, information concerning matters covered by the provisions of the Act, and make such reports thereon as the Commission may direct.

The sessions of the Commission shall be open to the public and shall stand and be adjourned without further notice thereof on its record. All of the proceedings of the Commission shall be shown on its record, which shall be a public record, and all voting shall be by the calling of each member's name by the secretary, and each member's vote shall be recorded on the proceedings as the same is cast.

Sec. 10. Subject to the provisions of this Act, the Commission may adopt its own rules of procedure and may change the same from time to time in its discretion.

Sec. 11. It shall also be the duty of the Commission, and it shall have the power, jurisdiction and authority:

(a) To appoint advisors, who shall, without compensation, assist the Commission in the execution of its duties;

(b) To inquire into and supervise the enforcement, as far as respects relations between employer and employee, of the laws relating to child labor, laundries, stores, factory inspection, employment of females, employment offices and bureaus, mining, both coal and metalliferous, fire escapes and means of egress from places of employment and all other laws protecting the life, health, and safety of employees in employments and places of employment;

(c) To investigate, ascertain, declare and prescribe safety devices, safeguards or other means or methods of protection best adapted to render safe the employees of every employment and place of employment, as may be required by law.

(d) To ascertain and fix such reasonable standards and to prescribe, modify and enforce such reasonable orders for the adoption of safety devices, safeguards and other means or methods of protection to be as nearly uniform as possible, as may be necessary to carry out all laws relative to the protection of the life, health, safety and welfare of employees in employments and places of employment.

(e) To ascertain, fix and order such reasonable standards, rules or regulations as provided by law, for the construction, repair and maintenance of places of employment, as shall render them safe. (f) To adopt reasonable and proper rules and regulations relative to the exercise of its powers and authorities and proper rules to govern its proceedings and to regulate the mode and manner of all investigations and hearings; to alter or amend the same from time to time in its discretion; such rules and regulations shall not be effective until ten days after their publication. A copy of such rules and regulations shall be delivered to every citizen making application therefor, and a copy delivered with every notice of hearing;

(g) To license and supervise private employment agencies; to supervise state free employment agencies; to do all in its power to bring together employers seeking employees, and working people seeking employment. It shall investigate the extent and causes of unemployment in the State of Colorado and the remedies therefor, and it shall devise and adopt the most efficient means within its power to avoid unemployment, and to prevent involuntary idleness;

(h) Any county, city or town may enter into an agreement with the Commission for such period of time as may be deemed desirable for the purpose of establishing and maintaining local free employment offices, and it shall be lawful for any county, city or town to appropriate and expend the necessary money and to permit the use of public property for the joint establishment and maintenance of such offices as may be agreed upon;

(i) To collect, collate and publish statistical and other information relating to the work under its jurisdiction; annually, on or before the tenth day of December, to make a full report to the Governor covering its work during the year preceding the first day of said month of December; to make public reports in its judgment necessary;

(j) The Commission shall cause to be printed, and, upon application, furnished, free of charge, to any employer or employee such blank forms as it shall deem requisite to facilitate or promote the efficient administration of this Act; it shall provide such proper record books or records as it shall deem required for the proper and efficient administration of this Act, all such records to be kept in the office of the Commission. It shall also cause to be printed in proper form for distribution to the public proper pamphlets showing its orders, regulations and rules of procedure, and shall furnish the same to any person upon application therefor, and the fact that such orders, regulations and rules of procedure are printed ready for distribution to all who apply for the same, shall be a sufficient publication of the same as required by this Act.

(k) To administer and enforce all the provisions of law relating to compensation for accidental injury to and death of employees.

Sec. 12. All general orders shall take effect upon their publication in the regular pamphlets of rules and regulations issued by the Commission.

Special orders shall take effect as therein directed.

The Commission may, upon application of any person, grant such time as may be reasonably necessary for compliance with any order. Any person may petition the Commission for an extension of time, which the Commission shall grant if it finds such an extension of time necessary.

All orders of the Commission shall be valid and in force, and prima facie reasonable and lawful until they are found otherwise in an action brought for that purpose, pursuant to the provisions of this Act, or until altered or revoked by the Commission.

A substantial compliance with the requirements of this Act, shall be sufficient to give effect to the orders or awards of the Commission and they shall not be declared inoperative, illegal or void for any omission of a technical nature in respect thereto.

Sec. 13. Every employer shall exercise reasonable care and comply fully with all the requirements of law respecting health and safety and to furnish places of employment which shall be safe for employees therein and to furnish and use safety devices and safeguards, and to adopt and use methods and processes reasonably adequate to render such employment and places of employment safe, and to do every other thing reasonably necessary to protect the life, health and safety of such employees. Every employer and every owner of a place of employment now or hereafter constructed shall exercise reasonable care to so construct, repair or maintain such place of employment as to render the same safe, in accordance with the Statutes of this State in such cases made and provided.

Sec. 14. Whenever the Commission shall learn, or upon petition by any person be informed, that any employment or place of employment is not safe, it shall proceed summarily with or without notice, to make such investigation as may be necessary to determine the matter complained of, so far as the same may affect the provisions of this Act.

After investigation, the Commission shall call the attention of the Commissioner of Labor, or other officer authorized to inspect and regulate same, and shall order such changes as may be necessary to render such employment or place of employment safe, and comply with the provisions of this Act.

Sec. 15. The Commission is vested with the power and jurisdiction to have such supervision of every employment and place of employment in this State as may be necessary adequately to ascertain and determine the conditions under which the employees labor, and the manner and extent of the obedience by the employer to all laws and all lawful orders requiring such employment and places of employment to be safe, and requiring the protection of the life, health and safety of every employee in such employment or place of employment, and to enforce all provisions of law relating thereto; and is also vested with power and jurisdiction to administer all provisions of this Act with respect to the relations between employer and employee and to do all other acts and things convenient and necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Act.

Sec. 16. It shall be the duty of all officers and employees of the State, the counties and municipalities, upon request of the Commission to enforce in their respective departments, all lawful orders of the Commission, in so far as the same may be applicable and consistent with the general duties of such officers and employees; and it shall also be their duty to make to such Commission such reports as it may require concerning matters within their knowledge appertaining to the purposes of this Act, and to furnish to it such facts, data, statistics and information as may from time to time come to them appertaining to the purposes of this Act, and the duties of such Commission thereunder, and particularly all information coming to their knowledge respecting the condition of all places of employment subject to the provisions of this Act, as regards the health, protection and safety of employees, and the conditions under which they labor.

It shall be the duty of the Labor Statistician of the Bureau of Labor Statistics to collect, compile and report to the Commission such data, facts and information as shall come to his department or to the Commission concerning the relations between employer and employee and relating in any way to the provisions of this Act.

Sec. 17. For the purpose of making any investigation, with regard to any employment or place of employment, or other matter contemplated by the provisions of this Act, the Commission shall have power to appoint, by an order in writing, any member of the Commission, any deputy or any other competent person as an agent whose duties shall be prescribed in such order.

In the discharge of his duties such agent shall have every power whatsoever for obtaining information granted in this Act to the Commission and all powers granted by law to officers authorized to take depositions are hereby granted to such agent.

The Commission may conduct any number of such investigations contemporaneously through different agents, and may delegate to such agents the taking of all testimony bearing upon any investigation or hearing. The decision of the Commission shall be based upon its examination of all testimony and records. The recommendations made by such agents shall be advisory only and shall not preclude any further investigation, or the taking of further testimony, if the Commission so order.

Every employer and employee shall furnish the Sec. 18. Commission, upon request, all information required by it to accomplish the purposes of this Act, which information shall be furnished on blanks to be prepared by the Commission; and it shall be the duty of the Commission to furnish such blanks to such employer free of charge, upon request therefor. Every employer receiving from the Commission any blanks, with directions to fill out the same, shall cause the same to be properly filled out so as to answer fully and correctly all questions therein propounded, and to give all the information therein sought, or if unable to do so, he shall give in writing good and sufficient reasons for such failure. The Commission may require that the information herein required to be furnished be verified under oath and returned to the Commission within the period fixed by it or by law. The Commission, or any person employed by it for that purpose, shall have the right to examine, under oath, any employee or employer, or the officer, agent or employee thereof, for the purpose of ascertaining any information which such employer or employee is required by this Act to furnish to the Commission. Any employer or employee who shall fail or refuse to furnish such information as may be required by the Commission under authority of this Act, shall, if an employer, be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine of two hundred dollars, and if an employee shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine of twenty-five dollars.

The information contained in the reports provided Sec. 19. for in the preceding section, and such other information as may be furnished to the Commission, by employers in pursuance of the provisions of this Act, shall be for the exclusive use and information of said Commission in the discharge of its official duties and shall not be open to the public nor to be used in any court. in any action or proceeding pending therein, unless the Commission is a party to such action or proceeding; but the information contained in said report may be tabulated and published by the Commission in statistical form, for the use and information of other State Departments and the public. Any person in the employ of the Commission who shall divulge any information secured by him in respect to the transactions, property or business of any employer to any person other than the Commission, shall be punished by a fine of not less than one hundred dollars (\$100.00) nor more than one thousand dollars (\$1.000.00) and shall thereafter be disqualified from holding any appointment or employment with any department under the State.

Sec. 20. The Commission, or any member thereof, and, on being authorized in writing by the Commission, any other person, may, without any other warrant than this Act, at any reasonable time, enter any building, mine, mine workings, factory, workshop, place or premises of any kind, wherein, or in respect of which, any industry is carried on or any work is being or has been done or commenced, or any matter or thing is taking place, which has been made the subject of an investigation, hearing or arbitration by the Commission or the board, and inspect and view any work, material, machinery, appliance or article therein, and interrogate any persons in or upon any such building, mine, mine workings, factory, workshop, place or premise as aforesaid in respect of or in relation to any matter or thing hereinbefore mentioned; and any person who shall hinder or obstruct the Commission, or any such person authorized as aforesaid, in the exercise of any power conferred by this section, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not less than one hundred dollars, nor more than one thousand dollars.

Sec. 21. All books, records and payrolls of employers, showing or reflecting in any way upon the amount of wage expenditure of such employers, and other data, facts and statistics appertaining to the purposes of this Act shall always be open for inspection by the Commission or any of its agents for the purpose of ascertaining the conditions of employment, and such other information as may be necessary for the uses and purposes of the Commission in its administration of the law.

Any employer who shall refuse to admit such Commission or its agents to such place of employment for such purposes shall be punished by a fine of not less than one hundred dollars (\$100.00) nor more than five hundred dollars (\$500.00).

Sec. 22. Such Commission, or persons by it duly designated, shall not be bound by the usual common law or statutory rules of evidence or by any technical or formal rules of procedure, other than as herein or by the rules of the Commission provided; but may make such investigations in such manner as in its judgment are best calculated to ascertain the substantial rights of the parties and to carry out justly the spirit of this Act.

Sec. 23. A full and complete record shall be kept of all proceedings had before or under the order of the Commission on any investigation and all testimony shall be taken down by a stenographer appointed by the Commission.

A transcribed copy of the evidence and proceedings, or any specific part thereof, or any investigation, by a stenographer appointed by the Commission, being certified by such stenographer to be a true and correct transcript of the testimony on the investigation, of a particular witness, or of a specific part thereof, carefully compared by him with his original notes, and to be a correct statement of the evidence and proceedings had on such investigation, so purporting to be taken and subscribed, may be received as evidence by the Commission with the same effect as if such stenographer were present and testified to the facts so certified. A copy of such transcript shall be furnished on demand to any party upon the payment of the fees therefor as prescribed for transcripts in district courts.

Sec. 24. The Commission or any party may in any investigation cause the depositions of witnesses residing within or without the State to be taken in the manner prescribed by law for like depositions in civil actions in district courts. All such depositions shall be taken upon commission issued by the Commission and shall be taken in accordance with the laws and rules of court covering depositions in civil cases in the district courts of this State.

Sec. 25. In case of failure or refusal of any person to comply with the order of the Commission or subpoena issued by it or its agents, or on the refusal of a witness to testify to any matter regarding which he may be lawfully interrogated, or refuse to permit an inspection as provided in this Act, the district judge of the county in which the person resides, on application of the Commission or any agent appointed by it shall compel obedience by attachment proceedings as for contempt, as in the case of disobedience of the requirements of subpoena issued from such court on a refusal to testify thereon.

Each officer who serves such subpoena shall receive the same fee as a sheriff, and each witness who appears, in obedience to a subpoena before the Commission or its agent shall receive for his attendance the fees and mileage provided for witnesses in civil cases in the district court, which shall be audited and paid from the State Treasury in the same manner as other expenses are audited and paid, upon the presentation of proper vouchers approved by the Commission. No witness subpoenaed at the instance of a party other than the Commission or its agent shall be entitled to compensation from the State Treasury unless the Commission shall certify that his testimony was material to the matter investigated.

Sec. 26. The Commission shall inquire into the general condition of labor in the principal industries in the State of Colorado and especially in those which are carried on in corporate forms; into existing relations between employers and employees: into the effect of industrial conditions on public welfare and into the rights and powers of the community to deal therewith; into the conditions of sanitation and safety of employees and the provisions for protecting the life, limb, and health of the employees; into relations existing between lessees of state lands and the State, as to production and royalties or rentals paid, and into the relations between said lessees and their employees with respect to wages paid and conditions of labor; into the growth of associations of employers and of wage earners and the effect of such associations upon the relations between employers and employees; into the extent and results of methods of collective bargaining; into any methods which have been tried in any state or

in foreign countries for maintaining mutually satisfactory relations between employees and employers; into methods of avoiding or adjusting labor disputes through peaceful and conciliatory mediation and negotiations; into the scope, methods and resources of existing bureaus of labor and into possible ways of increasing their efficiency and usefulness. The Commission shall seek to discover the underlying causes of dissatisfaction in the industrial situation and take all necessary means and methods within the powers of such Commission as provided by law, to alleviate the same, and to report from time to time to the General Assembly such remedial legislation as in the judgment of the Commission may be advisable, with their recommendations thereon.

Sec. 27. The Commission shall do all in its power to promote the voluntary arbitration, mediation and conciliation of disputes between employers and employees, and to avoid the necessity of resorting to strikes, lockouts, boycotts, blacklists, discriminations and legal proceedings in matters of employment. In pursuance of this duty it may appoint temporary boards of arbitration, provide necessary expenses of such boards, order reasonable compensation not exceeding ten dollars per day for each member engaged in such arbitration, prescribe rules of procedure for such arbitration boards, conduct investigations and hearings, publish reports and advertisements, and do all other acts and things convenient or necessary to accomplish the purposes directed in this Section.

Any investigation, inquiry or hearing may be undertaken or held by or before any commissioner, deputy, agent, or board of arbitration, or committee designated for that purpose by the Commission, and every finding, order, award or decision made by those so designated, pursuant to such investigation, inquiry or hearing, when approved and confirmed by the Commission, shall be and be deemed to be the finding, order, award or decision of the Commission.

Sec. 28. For the purpose of such investigations, hearings or arbitrations, the Commission, or any arbitration board appointed by the Commission, shall have all the powers of summoning before it, and enforcing the attendance of witnesses, of administering oaths, and of requiring witnesses to give evidence on oath, or on solemn affirmation, and to produce such books, papers or other documents or things as the Commission, or the board, deems requisite to the full investigation of the matters into which it is inquiring, as is vested in any court of record in civil cases.

Any members of the Commission, or the board, may administer an oath, and the Commission, or the board, may accept, admit and call for such evidence as in equity and good conscience it thinks fit, whether strictly legal evidence or not. Any party to the proceedings shall be competent and may be compelled to give evidence as a witness.

Sec. 29. Employers and employees shall give at least thirty days' notice of an intended change affecting conditions of employment with respect to wages or hours; and, in every case where a dispute has been made the subject of an investigation, hearing, or arbitration by the Commission, or the board, until the dispute has been finally dealt with by such Commission, or board. neither of the parties nor the employees affected, shall alter the conditions of employment with respect to wages or hours, or on account of the dispute, do, or be concerned in doing, directly or indirectly, anything in the nature of a lockout or strike, or a suspension or discontinuance of work or employment; but the relationship of employer and employee shall continue uninterrupted by the dispute, or anything arising out of the dispute; but, if either party uses this or any other provision of this Act for the purpose of unjustly maintaining a given condition of affairs through delay, such party shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not more than one hundred dollars.

Sec. 30. It shall be unlawful for any employer to declare or cause a lockout, or for any employee to go on strike, on account of any dispute prior to or during an investigation, hearing, or arbitration of such dispute by the Commission, or the board, under the provisions of this Act; provided, that nothing in this Act shall prohibit the suspension or discontinuance of any industry or of the working of any persons therein for any cause not constituting a lockout or strike, or to prohibit the suspension or discontinuance of any industry or of the working of any persons therein which industry is not affected with a public interest; provided, further, that nothing in this Act shall be held to restrain any employer from declaring a lockout, or any employee from going on strike in respect to any dispute after the same has been duly investigated, heard, or arbitrated, under the provisions of this Act.

Sec. 31. Nothing in this Act shall be construed to make any findings, determination of the rights of said parties, decision or award of said Commission or of any board of arbitration appointed thereby upon the facts of such controversy, binding, conclusive or enforcible upon any of the parties thereto, or affected thereby, unless

(1) Such parties have agreed in writing prior to the commencement of any such investigation or arbitration, or during the continuance thereof, to accept and be bound by the terms of such findings, determination of rights, decision or award, and then only to the extent in such written agreement provided; or, (2) Unless said parties shall agree to accept and be bound by such action of the Commission or board of arbitration after the same has been made known to them; provided, however, that in either such instance, the findings, determination of rights, decision and award of said Commission or board of arbitration, when confirmed by formal order of said Commission, shall be and remain in full force and effect, according to the terms and for the time provided in such formal order of the Commission, and shall be binding, effective and enforcible upon the parties thereto, as any finding, order or award of the Commission under the prorisions of this Act.

Sec. 32. Any employer declaring or causing a lockont contrary to the provisions of this Act shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not less than one hundred dollars (\$100.00) nor more than one thousand dollars (\$1000.00) for each day or part of a day that such lockont exists.

Any employee, who goes on strike contrary to the provisions of this Act shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not less than ten dollars (\$10.00) nor more than fifty dollars (\$50.00) for each day or part of a day that such employee is on strike.

Sec. 33. Any person who incites, encourages, or aids in any manner any employer to declare or continue a lockont, or any employee to go or continue on strike, contrary to the provisions of this Act, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars (\$50.00), nor more than one thousand dollars (\$1000.00), or by imprisonment in the county jail for a term of not more than six months, or both such fine and imprisonment, in the discretion of the court.

Sec. 34. The Commission shall have full power and anthority to hear and determine all questions within its jurisdiction, and its findings, award and order issued thereon shall be final, except as in this Act provided.

Any person affected by any finding, order or award of the Commission, may petition for a hearing on the reasonableness of any such finding, order or award.

Such petition shall be verified, and shall specify the finding, order or award upon which a hearing is desired and every reason why such finding, order or award is considered nureasonable. The petitioner shall be deemed to have finally waived all objections to any irregularities and illegalities in the finding, order or award upon which a hearing is sought other than those set forth in the petition. All hearings of the Commission shall be open to the public.

Sec. 35. Upon the filing with the Commission by any party in interest, of such petition, the Commission shall fix a time for the hearing thereof, which shall not be more than forty days after the filing of such application. The Commission shall cause reasonable notice of such hearing, embracing a general statemen⁺ of such claim, to be given to each party interested, by service of such notice on him personally or by mailing a copy thereof to him at his last known postoffice address at least ten days before such hearing. Such hearing may be adjourned from time to time in the discretion of the Commission, and hearings shall be held at such places as the Commission may designate. Either party shall have the right to be present at any hearing, in person or by attorney, or any other agent, and to present such testimon 7 as may be pertinent to the controversy before the Commission, and shall have the right of cross-examination; provided, that the Commission may, with or without notice to either party, cause testimony to be taken, or an inspection or investigation to be made; the testimony so taken shall be reported to the Commission for its consideration upon final hearing. All ex parte testimony taken by the Commission shall be reduced to writing and either party shall have opportunity to examine and rebut the same on final hearing.

Upon such hearing, if it shall be found that the finding, order or award complained of is unreasonable, the Commission shall substitute therefor such other finding, order or award as shall be just and reasonable, or may rescind such finding, order or award.

Whenever at the time of the final determination upon such hearing it shall be found that further time is reasonably necessary for compliance with the finding, order or award of the Commission, the Commission shall grant such time as may be reasonably necessary for such compliance.

Sec. 36. After final hearings by said Commission, it shall make and file (1) its findings upon all the facts involved in the controversy, and (2) its award, which shall state its determination as to the rights of the parties. Pending the hearing and determination of any controversy before it, the Commission shall have power to make such reasonable orders concerning the subject matter thereof, as may be necessary to give effect to the provisions of this Act.

The Commission, on its own motion, on three days' notice to the parties interested, by mail or served personally, may modify or change its order, finding or award at any time within fifteen days from the date thereof, if it shall discover any mistake therein.

Sec. 37. Any person in interest being dissatisfied with any such finding, order or award of the Commission issued or promulgated by virtue of the authority conferred in this Act, may commence an action in the district court in and for the county wherein the injury was sustained or in the District Court in and for the City and County of Denver against the Commission as defendant to modify or vacate the same on the ground that the same is unlawful, or unreasonable.

All such actions shall have precedence over any civil cause of a different nature pending in such court, and the District Court shall always be deemed open for the trial thereof, and the same shall be tried and determined by the District Court as other civil actions.

Sec. 38. No action, proceeding or suit to set aside, vacate or amend any finding, order or award of the Commission, or to enjoin the enforcement thereof, shall be brought unless the plaintiff shall have first applied to the Commission for a hearing thereon as provided in this Act, and unless such action, proceeding or suit shall have been commenced within 60 days after final decision by the Commission; nor shall any injunction issue suspending or staying any order of the Commission except upon application of the District Court or a judge thereof, notice to the Commission and hearing thereon.

In such action, a copy of the complaint, which shall state the grounds upon which a review is sought, shall be served with the summons. The Commission shall file its answer within twenty days after the service of the complaint. With its answer, the Commission shall make return to said court of all documents and papers on file in the matter, and of all testimony which may have been taken therein, and of its order, finding and award. Such return of the Commission when filed in the office of the clerk of the District Court shall constitute a judgment roll in such action; and it shall not be necessary to settle a bill of exceptions in order to make such return part of the record of such court in such action. Said action may thereupon be brought on for hearing before said court upon such record by either party on ten days' notice to the other; subject, however, to the provisions of law for a change of the place of trial or the calling in of another judge.

Sec. 39. If upon trial of such action it shall appear that all issues arising in such action have not theretofore been presented to the Commission in the petition filed as provided in this Act, or that the Commission has not theretofore had an ample opportunity to hear and determine any of the issues raised in such action, or has for any reason, not in fact heard and determined the issues raised, the court shall, before proceeding to render judgment, unless the parties to such action stipulate to the contrary, transmit to the Commission a full statement of such issue or issues not adequately considered, and shall stay further proceedings in such action for fifteen days from the date of such transmission, and may thereafter grant such further stays as may be necessary. Upon the receipt of such statement, the Commission shall hear and consider the issues not theretofore heard and considered, and may alter, modify, amend or rescind its findings, order or award complained of in said action, and shall report its action thereon to said court within ten days from the receipt of the statement from the court for further hearing and consideration.

The court shall thereupon order such amendment or other proceeding as may be necessary to raise the issues as presented by such modification of the finding, order or award as may have been made by the Commission upon the hearing, if any such modification has in fact been made, and shall proceed with the trial of such action.

Sec. 40. Upon such hearing, the court may confirm or set aside such order, but only upon one or more of the following grounds:

(1) That the Commission acted without or in excess of its powers.

(2) That the finding, order or award was procured by fraud.

(3) That the findings of fact by the Commission do not support the order or award.

(4) That the award does not do substantial justice to the parties.

Any action commenced in court under this section to set aside or modify any finding, order or award of the Commission shall be brought to trial within thirty days after issue shall be joined, unless continued on order of the court for good cause shown. No continuance shall be for longer than thirty days at one time.

Upon the trial of any such action the court shall disregard any irregularity or error of the Commission unless it be made to affirmatively appear that the claimant was damaged thereby.

The record in any case shall be transmitted to the Commission within twenty days after the order or judgment of the court, unless, in the meantime, a writ of error addressed to the District Court shall be obtained from the Supreme Court, for the review of such order or judgment.

Upon the setting aside of any finding, order or award, the court may recommit the controversy and remand the records in the case to the Commission for further hearing or proceedings; or it may enter the proper judgment upon the findings, as the nature of the case shall demand. An abstract of the judgment entered by the trial court upon the review of any order or award, shall be made by the clerk thereof upon the docket of said court, and a transcript of such abstract may be obtained as of any entry upon such docket. Sec. 41. The Commission or any party aggrieved by a judgment entered upon the review of any such finding, order or award, may have questions of law only reviewed summarily by the Supreme Court by writ of error, as provided by law, and said cause shall be advanced upon the calendar of the Supreme Court, and a final decision rendered within sixty (60) days from date of issuance of the writ. It shall not be necessary for said Commission or any party aggrieved by said action to execute, serve or file any undertaking in order to obtain such writ of error.

Sec. 42. No fees shall be charged by the clerk of any court for the preformance of any official service required by this Act, except for the docketing of judgments, and for certified copies of transcripts thereof. In proceedings to review any finding, order or award, costs as between the parties shall be allowed, or not, in the discretion of the court, but no costs shall be taxed against said Commission. In any action for the review of any finding, order or award, and upon any review thereof by the Supreme Court, it shall be the duty of district attorney of the county wherein said action is pending, or the Attorney General, if requested by the Commission, to appear on behalf of the Commission, whether any other party defendant should have appeared or be represented in the action or not.

Sec. 43. Any person who shall wilfully fail or neglect to appear and testify or to produce books, papers and records as required by subpoena duly served upon him, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined not less than twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) nor more than one hundred dollars (\$100.00), or imprisoned in the county jail not longer than thirty days for each such offense.

The district court of the county wherein such person resides, or of the City and County of Denver, upon application of the Commission or its agent, may issue an order compelling the attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of books, papers and records before such Commission or any such agent.

Sec. 44. If any employer or employee, or any other person shall violate any provisions of this Act, or shall do any act prohibited thereby, or shall fail or refuse to perform any duty lawfully enjoined, within the time prescribed by the Commission, for which no penalty has been specifically provided, or shall fail, neglect or refuse to obey any lawful order made by the Commission or any judgment or decree made by any court as provided by this Act, for each such violation, failure or refusal, such employer, employee or other person shall be punished by a fine of not less than one hundred dollars for each such offense.

Sec. 45. Every day during which any employer or officer or agent thereof, or any employee, shall fail to comply with any

lawful order of the Commission or to perform any duty imposed by this Act, shall constitute a separate and distinct violation thereof.

Sec. 46. All penalties provided for in this Act shall be collected in a civil action bronght against the employer or employee as the case may be, in the name of the Commission, and all such penalties, when collected, shall be paid into the expense fund of such Commission and become a part thereof.

Sec. 47. Upon request of the Commission, the Attorney General, or under his direction, the district attorney of any district or county, shall institute and prosecute the necessary action or proceedings for the enforcement of any of the provisions of this Act, or for the recovery of any money due the Commission, or any penalty herein provided for, arising within the district or county in which he was elected, and shall defend in like manner all snits, actions or proceedings brought against the Commission.

Sec. 48. If, for the purpose of obtaining any order, benefit or award under the provisions of this Act, either for himself or for any other person, any one wilfully makes a false statement or representation, he shall be guilty of perjury and punished accordingly.

Sec. 49. There is hereby appropriated out of any money in the Treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of fifty thousand dollars or so much thereof as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this Act for the current biennial period.

Sec. 50. All acts and parts of acts in conflict with the provisions of this Act, are hereby repealed, provided that no right of action now existing shall be affected by such repeal, and nothing contained in this Act shall be construed to affect the authority of the State Board of Health relative to the public health.

Sec. 51. If any part, section, sub-section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Act is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Act. The General Assembly hereby declares that it would have passed this Act and each part, section, sub-section, sentence, clause or phrase, irrespective of the fact that any one or more other parts, sections, sub-sections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional.

Sec. 52. It is hereby declared that this Act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety.

Sec. 53. In the opinion of the General Assembly, an emergency exists; Therefore, this Act shall take effect and be in force immediately after its passage.

Approved : April 10, 1915.

Index to Industrial Commission Act

APPEALS-	Section	Page
District Court		
Answer	38	88
Complaint	38	88
Court send back for further hearing when	39	88
Proceeding of Commission thereon	39	88
Hearing, how brought on for	38	88
Injunction, not issued without notice	38	88
Judgment of court	40	89
Non-prejudicial error disregarded	40	89
Petition for rehearing, necessity and form of	34, 38	86, 87
Hearing on	35	87
Precedence over civil actions, when	37	87
Record of Commission sent to Court	38	88
Record remitted to Commission in 20 days except		
when Remand case to Commission for further hearing	40	89
when	40	89
	40	89
Review ground of, prescribed		89 88
Time for bringing, 60 days	38	
Trial must be held in 30 days	40	89
Venue	37	87
Who may take Supreme Court	37	87
How Taken	41	90
Law questions only reviewed	41	90 90
Who may bring and when	41	90 90
APPROPRIATIONS-	49	91
\$50,000 for expense of Commission	49	31
ARBITRATION-		
Agent may act	27	84
Appoint temporary boards of	27	84
Expenses of, how paid	27	84
Powers of	28	84
Commission promote	27	84
ATTORNEY GENERAL OR DISTRICT ATTORNEY-		
Represent Commission	42, 47	90-91
	,	
CONSTRUCTION OF ACT-		
Declaration of Legislative intention	51	91
Emergency Act	53	91
Public peace, health and safety act necessary for	52	91
State Board of Health, authority of, not affected	50	91
DEFINITIONS-		
Commission	1	73
Commissioner	2	73
Deputy	4-h	74
Debues	1-11	

DEFINITIONS-Continued-	Section P	age
Employe	4-d	74
Employer	4-c	73
Employment	4-b	73
Places of	4-a	73
Masculine gender include feminine	3	73
Order	4-e	74
General	4 - f	74
Local	4-g	74
Safe	4-i	74
Safety	4-i	74
Singular number include plural	3	73
DEPOSITIONS-		
How and when taken	24	83
now and when taken	2.	00
EMPLOYES (See Labor)-		
EMPLOYER (See Labor)-		
Information furnished to Commission	18	81
Blanks for, Commission provide	18	81
Confidential, shall be	19	81
Penalty for divulging	19	81
Examination under oath to obtain	18	81
Penalty for failure	18	81
Use of by Commission	19	81
Places of employment		
Entry into when	20	81
Safety of employes and places of employment, duties of	13	79
barety of employee and places of employment, duties of	10	10
EMPLOYMENT, PLACES OF-		
Entry into may be made	20	81
Penalty for refusal to admit	20	81
Investigation of	14	79
Decision on, how made	14	79
Safety of, prescribe	11-b-c-d	77
Supervision of, extent of	15	79
ENTRY INTO PLACES OF EMPLOYMENT-		
Commission or deputy may make when	20	81
Penalty for refusal to admit	20	81
Tenarty for relusar to admit	20	01
EVIDENCE-		
Commission not bound by common law or statutory rules	22	82
Technicalities and formalities disregarded	22	82
EXPENSES OF COMMISSION-		
How paid	6	75
What may be paid	6	75
"hat may be part	0	10
FEES-		
Court clerks not charge except when	42	90
FINDING AND AWARD-		
Binding when	31	85
Contents of	31 36	80 87
Modification of by Commission when	36	87

FINDING AND AWARD—Continued—	Section	Page
Petition for rehearing, on reasonableness of; form of	34	86
Hearing on, when and how held	35	87
Rescind, finding and award, when	35	87
Waives all errors not set forth	34	86
Who may file	34	86
HEARINGS-		
		0.5
Orders binding, pending final determination of	36	87
Public, shall be open to	34	86
INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION—		
Appointment and qualification of members	5	74
Bond must file	5	74
Creation of	5	74
Devote entire time to duties	5	74
Duties and powers of generally		
Advisers appoint	11-a	77
Blank forms print and distribute free	11-j	78
Compensation Act enforce	11-k	78
Employment offices		
Municipal free, authorize	11-h	78
Private, license and supervise	11-g	78
State supervise	11-g	78
Information collate and publish	11-i	78
Report to Governor annually	11-i	78
Rules and regulations		
Adoption of	11-f	78
Alteration and amendment of	11-f	78
Copy of sent with notice of hearing	11-f	78
Effective when	11-f	78
Safety		
Devices prescribe	11-c	77
Employment, places of investigate	11-c	77
Rules and regulations enforce	11-е	77
Standards of prescribed	11-d-е	77
Supervise and enforce		
Child labor	11-b	77
Employment offices and bureaus	1 1- b	77
Factory inspection	11 - b	77
Females, employment of	11-b	77
Fire escapes	11-b	77
Life, health and safety laws	11-b	77
Mining	11-b	77
Employes of		
Appoint how	6	75
Qualifications of	6	75
Salaries of, how fixed	6	75
Who may be appointed	6	75
Expenses of how paid	5-6	74 - 75
Office and equipment of	8	76
Organization of	9	76
Quorum majority constitute	5	74
Rules of procedure .		
Adopted how	10-11-f	77-78
Changed how	10-11-f	77-78
Effective when	11-f	78
Salary of	5	74
Seal of	7	76
Courts take judicial notice of	7	76

INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION-Continued-	Section	Page
Secretary, powers and duties of	9	76
Sessions		
Adjournment of	9	76
Held where	8	76
Public	9	76
Record of kept Sue and be sued how	9 7	76 76
Term of office of	5	74
Vacancies in, how filled	5	74
Voting of, how recorded	9	76
INSPECTION-		
Books, records, pay-rolls, of employers	21	82
Penalty for refusing to admit	21	82
Places of employment	20	81
INVESTIGATIONS-		
Agent, deputy or board may hold	17, 27	80, 84
Decision of Commission, how made	17, 27	80, 84
Powers of	17, 27	80, 84
Contemporaneous may be held	17	80
Summarily may be made	14	79
LABOR—		
Associations of, Commission investigate	26	83
Conditions of, Commission inquire into	26	83
Duties and powers enumerated	26	83
Controversies Commission investigate	27, 29	84, 85
Conditions of employment not altered during inves-	21, 25	01, 00
tigation	29	85
Employers and employes give thirty days' notice	29	85
Respecting change of wages or hours	29	85
Lockout Permissible when	30	85
Prohibited when	29-30	85
Penalty for	32	86
Perverting provisions of Act, penalty for	29	85
Strike		
Permissible when Prohibited when	30 29-30	85 85
Not affect discontinuance of business	29-30 30	85 85
Exceptions	30	85
Penalty for	32	86

MEDIATION AND CONCILIATION (See Arbitration)-

ORDERS-

Binding pending determination of hearing	36	87
General orders take effect when	12	79
Prima facie lawful	12	79
Special orders take effect when	12	79
Technicalities not invalidate	12	79
Time for compliance with	12	79
Valid and effective until revoked or altered	12	79

	Section	Page
PENALTY, GENERAL	44	90
Collection of by civil action	46	91
Each day separate offense	45	90
Expense Fund of Commission, credited with	46	91
PERJURY-		
False statement, when deemed	48	91
PUBLIC OFFICIALS-		
Assist and render information to Commission	16	80
Attorney General represent	42, 47	90-91
District Attorney represent	42, 47	90-91
RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS-		
How taken and kept	23	82
Shorthand testimony taken in	23	82
Certified copy of, received in evidence	23	82
Fees for copies of	23	82
REHEARING, PETITION FOR	34	86
Hearing on	35	87
REPEALING CLAUSE	50	91
SAFETY (See Industrial Commission, Employment, Employers)-		
STRIKE (See Labor)-		
SUBPOENAES-		
Attachment to compel obedience	25,43	83
Fees for service of Penalty for failure to obey	25 43	83 90
Tenang for fondre to oney finnennen finnennen	10	00
SUPREME COURT (See Appeals)-		
WITNESSES-		
Attachment for failure to appear	25	83
Attendance of, how enforced		83-84-90
Books, papers, documents, require production of	28, 43	84,90
Penalty for failure Oath administer to	43 28	90 84
Summoning of, Agent, Board or Commission may require	28	84
Party to proceeding, may be compelled to testify	28	84
Penalty for failure to appear or testify	43	90
DECENT		
RECEIVED		

NOV 07 1996

STATE PUBLICATIONS Colorado State Library



